
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, COUNTY OF KAUA‘I 

On March 16, 2020, Governor David Y. Ige issued a Supplementary Emergency Proclamation related 
to COVID-19 which suspended Chapter 92 of the Hawai‘i Revised Statutes (“HRS”), relating to 
Public Agency Meetings and Records (commonly referred to as the Sunshine Law) to the extent 
necessary in order to enable boards to conduct business in-person or through remote technology 
without holding meetings open to the public. Boards shall consider reasonable measures to allow 
public participation consistent with social distancing practices, such as providing notice of 
meetings, allowing the submission of written testimony on items which have been posted on an 
agenda, live streaming of meetings, and posting minutes of meetings online. No board deliberation 
or action shall be invalid, if such measures are not taken. 

In accordance with the Governor’s Proclamations including the stay-at-home order and the Mayor’s 
Proclamations and Emergency Rules, the Board of Water Supply meetings will be conducted as 
follows until further notice: 

• Board meetings will be held via remote technology to be consistent with social distancing
practices and stay-at-home orders.

• Board members and/or resource individuals may appear via remote technology.
• Board meetings will continue to be noticed pursuant to HRS Chapter 92.
• Written testimony on any agenda item will continue to be accepted.

o Written testimony may be submitted to the Commission Support Clerk via email at
board@kauaiwater.org by the close of business the day before the Board meeting is
scheduled, or mailed to the Board of Water Supply at 4398 Pua Loke Street, Līhu‘e,
Kaua‘i, Hawai‘i 96766 with attention to the Commission Support Clerk. The public is
asked to please provide sufficient time for receipt of the testimony if mailing in public
testimony.

o Persons wishing to testify are requested to register their name, phone number, and
identify the agenda item for which they wish to provide testimony via email at
board@kauaiwater.org or by calling (808) 245-5406.

o If you wish to submit oral testimony prior to the Board meeting, it may be submitted  by
leaving a voice message at (808) 245-5406.

o The Commission Support Clerk will provide electronic copies of public testimony
received, if any, to the Board members prior to the start of the meeting.

• Board meeting minutes will continue to comply with HRS Chapter 92 and be posted to the
Board’s website at http://www.kauaiwater.org/cp_waterboard_agendas.asp.

For more information on COVID-19 and to access the Governor’s Proclamations please visit: 
https://hawaiicovid19.com/. 

For County of Kaua‘i information, including the Mayor Kawakami’s daily updates, Proclamations, 
and Emergency Rules, please visit: http://www.kauai.gov/COVID-19. 

Page 1

mailto:board@kauaiwater.org
http://www.kauaiwater.org/cp_waterboard_agendas.asp
https://hawaiicovid19.com/
http://www.kauai.gov/COVID-19


 
 

 
 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 

GREGORY KAMM, CHAIR 
KURT AKAMINE, VICE CHAIR 

JULIE SIMONTON, SECRETARY 
LAWRENCE DILL, MEMBER 
KA’AINA HULL, MEMBER 
TROY TANIGAWA, MEMBER 
ELESTHER CALIPJO, MEMBER 

 
 

 
 
 

REGULAR MONTHLY TELECONFERENCE MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Thursday, October 21, 2021 

10:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter 
 
PUBLIC ACCESS +1- 415-655-0001 US Toll, Conference ID: 2552 141 7049, Password: 4398# 
 

This meeting will be held via Microsoft Teams conferencing only. Members of the public are invited 
to join this meeting by calling the number above with the conference ID information. You may 
testify during the video conference or submit written testimony in advance of the meeting via e-
mail, fax, or mail. To avoid excessive noise/feedback, please mute your microphone except when 
you are called to testify. 
 
If members or the public require technical assistance, please contact:  informationtechnology@kauaiwater.org 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL    
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
Introduction of new Manager, Joseph Tait 
Next Scheduled Meeting:  Thursday, November 18, 2021 – 10:00 a.m. via Tele-Conference. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: 
1. Regular Board Meeting – September 23, 2021 
2. Executive Session Meeting – September 23, 2021 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Manager’s Report No. 22-27 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 

Policy 8, Charges for Department Labor and Equipment on Jobbing Work and Capital Projects 
by Department Personnel 

2. Manager’s Report No. 22-28 Discussion and Possible Action to Rescind Board Policy 12, 
Retention Periods and Destruction of Records 

3. Manager’s Report No. 22-29 Discussion and Possible Action to Rescind Board Policy 15, 
Payment of Claims and Disbursement of Funds 

4. Manager’s Report No. 22-30 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 
Policy 19, Travel Allowance Excess Expenditures 

mailto:informationtechnology@kauaiwater.org


PAGE 2 
 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – OCTOBER 21, 2021 

Kulana Onsite 
5. Manager’s Report No. 22-31 Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of 

Water Facility from the Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for the Kulana Subdivision 
Onsite Water System Phase 2; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001; Kapaa, Kauai, Hawaii 

6. Manager’s Report No. 22-32 Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement 
agreement from Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for Kulana Subdivision Onsite 
Water System, Phase 2, S-99-49; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001, Kapaa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
Kulana Offsite 

7. Manager’s Report No. 22-33 Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of 
Water Facility from the Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for the Kulana Subdivision 
Offsite Water System and 0.25 MG Tank; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001 and (4) 4-4-003:089; Kapaa, 
Kauai, Hawai'i 

8. Manager’s Report No. 22-34 Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Right of Entry 
Agreement with Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for the Roadway Lot 21 (referred 
to as Kulana Place) of the Kulana Subdivision, S-99-49, TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001; Kapaa, Kauai, 
Hawai'i 
Kulana Tank 

9. Manager’s Report No. 22-35 Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Right of Entry 
Agreement with Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for the Lot 8 (por.) of the 
Thronas Subdivision; TMK: (4) 4-4-003:089; Kapaa, Kauai, Hawaii 
Kukui‘ula Parcel E 

10. Manager’s Report No. 22-36 Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of 
Water Facility from Kukuiula Development Company, LLC for Parcel E, Subdivision No. S-
2020-02; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020, Koloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

11. Manager’s Report No. 22-37 Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement 
agreements from Kukuiula Development Company, LLC for Parcel E, Subdivision No. S-2020-
02; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020 (por.), Koloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
Kukui‘ula Parcel G 

12. Manager’s Report No. 22-38 Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement 
agreement from Kukuiula Development Company, LLC for Parcel G, Subdivision No. S-2019-
19; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:070, Koloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
Kukui‘ula Parcel Kainani Villas 

13. Manager’s Report No. 22-39 Discussion and Possible Action to approve Grant of Easement 
agreements from Kukuiula Development Company, LLC for Kainani Phase 2, Subdivision No. 
S-2019-13; TMK: (4) 2-6-021:017, (4) 2-6-021:005 (por.) and (4) 2-6-021:016 (por.) Koloa, 
Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Manager’s Report No. 22-40 Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 22-05 Imagine A Day 

Without Water 
2. Manager’s Report No. 22-41 Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for 

Indemnification for Zoom between the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and Zoom 



PAGE 3 
 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – OCTOBER 21, 2021 

3. Manager’s Report No. 22-42 Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for 
Indemnification for Granicus between the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and 
Granicus 

4. Board Meeting Dates for 2022 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
1. Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 
 a. September Monthly Summary Budget 
 b. Accounts Receivable Aging Summary 
2. Public Relations Activities 

a. Video Presentation of EPA WaterSense 2021 Excellence Award 
3. Operational Activities 
4. Manager and Chief Engineer 
 
QUARTERLY REPORTS: 
1. Build America Bond 
2. Claims Settled by Department of Water 
3. Engineering 
4. Information Technology 
 
TOPICS FOR NEXT BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETING: (November) 
1. Election of Officers for 2022 

 
TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETINGS: 
1. DOW Draft Audit Financial Statements and Independent Auditor’s Report for Fiscal Year 

Ending 2021 
2. Manager and Chief Engineer Goals for Calendar Year 2022 
3. Manager’s Report No. 17-29 - Discussion and Possible Action on the Financial Management 

Planning and Water Rate Study for the Department of Water for Fiscal Year 2022 through 
Fiscal Year 2026  

4. Department of Water Performance Audit 
5. Baseyard Master Plan Workshop 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statues (HRS) §92-7(a), the Board may, when deemed necessary, 
hold an executive session on any agenda item without written public notice if the Executive 
Session was not anticipated in advance. Any such executive session shall be held pursuant to HRS 
§92-4 and shall be limited to those items described in HRS §92-5(a). 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
  



PAGE 4 
 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – OCTOBER 21, 2021 

WRITTEN TESTIMONY 
The Board is required to afford all interested persons an opportunity to present testimony on 
any agenda item. The Board encourages written testimony at least two (2) business days prior 
to a scheduled Board meeting.  At each Board meeting, the Board will accept oral and written 
testimony on any agenda item at item Public Testimony. 
 

Please include: 
1. Your name and if applicable, your position/title and organization you are representing   
2. The agenda item that you are providing comments on; and 
3. Whether you are a registered lobbyist and, if so, on whose behalf you are appearing. 

 

Send written testimony to: 
Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua‘i  
C/O Administration 
4398 Pua Loke Street  
Līhu‘e, Hawai‘i   96766 

E-Mail: board@kauaiwater.org  
Phone: (808) 245-5406 
Fax: (808) 245-5813 

 
SPEAKER REGISTRATION 
Prior to the Day of the Meeting:  Persons wishing to testify are requested to register their name, 
phone number, and identify the agenda item for which they wish to provide testimony via email 
at board@kauaiwater.org or by calling (808) 245-5406. 
 

On the Day of the Meeting: Persons who have not registered to testify by the time the Board 
meeting begins will be given an opportunity to speak on an item following oral testimonies of 
registered speakers. The length of time allocated to person(s) wishing to present verbal 
testimony may be limited at the discretion of the chairperson. 

 
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE  

If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, or an interpreter 
for non-English speaking persons, please call (808) 245-5406 or email board@kauaiwater.org as 
soon as possible.  Requests made as early as possible will allow adequate time to fulfill your 
request.  Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats such as large print, Braille, or 
electronic copy. 

mailto:board@kauaiwater.org
mailto:board@kauaiwater.org
mailto:board@kauaiwater.org


 

Draft 

Minutes 

Page 6



 

Regular Meeting Minutes September 23, 2021 P a g e  | 1 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 
Thursday, September 23, 2021 

 
The Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua‘i, met in a regular meeting via remote in Līhu'e on 
Thursday, September 23, 2021. Chairman Gregory Kamm called the meeting to order at 10:08 a.m. 
The following Board members were present: 
 
 BOARD: Mr. Gregory Kamm, Chair 
  Mr. Kurt Akamine, Vice Chair (entered at 11:03 a.m.) 
  Mr. Kaaina Hull  
  Ms. Julie Simonton 
  Mr. Troy Tanigawa   
      
 EXCUSED: Mr. Lester Calipjo  
  Mr. Lawrence Dill 
      
  Quorum was achieved with 4 members present at Roll Call. 
 
 STAFF: Manager & Chief Engineer Mark Knoff    
  Mrs. Mary-jane Akuna 
  Mr. Jaspreet Banwait 
  Mr. Michael Hinazumi 
  Mrs. Jonell Kaohelaulii 
  Mr. Valentino Reyna   
  Mr. Marcelino Soliz 
  Ms. Cherisse Zaima     
  Deputy County Attorney Mahealani M. Krafft 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Next Scheduled Meeting: Thursday, October 21, 2021 – 10:00 a.m. via Tele-Conference 
 
Prior to the approval of the agenda, Chair Kamm requested that Item 2 under New Business, 
Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 22-04 Farewell to Keith Aoki, be moved to the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Board member Simonton moved to approve the agenda, as amended, to take Item 2 under New 
Business as the first item on the agenda, seconded by Mr. Tanigawa; with no objections, motion 
carried with 4 Ayes. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2. Manager’s Report No. 22-26 Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 22-04 Farewell to 

Keith Aoki (Retiree), Civil Engineer VI, Engineering Division 
 
Manager Knoff read Resolution No. 22-04 into the record, followed by presentation of the 
resolution. 
 



 

Regular Meeting Minutes September 23, 2021 P a g e  | 2 

Board member Hull moved to approve Manager’s Report No. 22-26, seconded by Troy Tanigawa; 
with no objections, motion carried with 4 Ayes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
1. Special Board Meeting – August 16, 2021 (1:30 p.m.) 
2. Special Board Meeting – August 16, 2021 (2:00 p.m.) 
3. Executive Session Meeting – August 16, 2021 
4. Regular Board Meeting – August 26, 2021 
5. Executive Session Meeting – August 26, 2021 
6. Regular Board Meeting – August 30, 2021 (continued from August 26, 2021) 
7. Executive Session Meeting – August 30, 2021 (continued from August 26, 2021) 
 
Board Member Hull moved to approve Board Meeting minutes 1 through 7, seconded by Mr. Hull; 
with no objections, motion carried with 6 Ayes. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
There was one (1) registered testimony received via email.  Mr. Tristan Gonzales of Goodfellow 
Bros. read his email testimony into the record (on file). 
 
There were three (3) callers from the public who joined in the meeting. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
1. From Tristan Gonzales, Kaua'i Assistant Regional Manager, Goodfellow Bros.  re: Contractor 

Pay Application Approval Process, Change Order Requests and Response, Request for 
Equitable Adjustment 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
1. Manager’s Report No. 22-20 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 

Policy 24, Delegation of Responsibility for Conveyance of Water Facilities and Grants of 
Easement 

2. Manager’s Report No. 22-21 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 
Policy 28, Inter-Fund Transfer 

3. Manager’s Report No. 22-22 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 
Policy 29, Categorization & Funding of Capital Projects 

4. Manager’s Report No. 22-23 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 
Policy 30, Delegation of Responsibility for Rights of Entry 

5. Manager’s Report No. 22-24 Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board 
Policy 31, Reserve Fund 

 
Manager Knoff explained that these are existing policies that have been revised for form and 
clarification, and to remove any redundancies; there are no substantive changes to these policies. 
 
Board member Hull moved to approve Consent Calendar items 1 through 5, seconded by Mr. 
Tanigawa; with no objections, motion carried with 4 Ayes. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Manager’s Report No. 22-25 Discussion and Possible Action on a Memorandum of 

Understanding between the Employees Retirement System of the State of Hawai'i and the 
Department of Water, County of Kaua'i for the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 



 

Regular Meeting Minutes September 23, 2021 P a g e  | 3 

Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” Financial Statement 
for FY Ending June 2021 through 2026 

 
Manager Knoff explained that there is a new ERS requirement to gather accounting and financial 
reporting for pensions by state and government employees.  To comply with this, the Department 
will be partnering with other organizations in order to reduce costs.  This MOU will substantially 
reduce department fees and will eliminate the need for the department to go out and procure 
these services.  Overall, it is a much more cost-effective and efficient way to collect the 
information the department is required to report. 
 
Board member Tanigawa moved to approve Manager’s Report No. 22-25, seconded by Mr. Hull; 
with no objections, motion carried with 4 Ayes. 
 
STAFF REPORTS 
1. Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

a. June Monthly Summary Budget 
b. Accounts Receivable Aging Summary 

Assistant Waterworks Controller Marcelino Soliz provided a summary of the Fiscal report.   
 

2. Public Relations Activities 
Information and Educational Specialist Jonell Kaohelaulii provided a summary of the Public 
Relations report. 
 
3. Operational Activities 
Chief of Water Operations Val Reyna provided a summary of the Operations report submitted. 
 
4. Manager and Chief Engineer 
Manager Mark Knoff provided a summary of the Manager’s Update submitted. 

 
TOPICS FOR NEXT BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETINGS 

 
1. Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Board Policies 
2. Quarterly Staff reports (Engineering, Water Quality, I.T., County Attorney) 
 
Manager Knoff noted that there are four (4) Board Policies that have not yet been evaluated, but 
once they have gone through these last four, all of the policies will have been updated and the 
Board can start the next calendar year with a clean slate of policies. 
 
TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETINGS: 
1. Manager’s Report No. 17-29 - Discussion and Possible Action on the Financial 

Management Planning and Water Rate Study for the Department of Water for Fiscal Year 
2022 through Fiscal Year 2026  

2. Department of Water Performance Audit 
3. Baseyard Master Plan Workshop 
 
Chair Kamm noted that the Baseyard Master Plan Workshop has been on the agenda long before 
he was on the Board and asked whether that was actually going to happen.  Manager Knoff 
stated that he is aware that a master plan has been put together, but it’s more of a look at future 



 

Regular Meeting Minutes September 23, 2021 P a g e  | 4 

planning for what facilities and resources the organization will need based on the number of 
personnel and how operations are conducted. Workshop may not be the correct term for it. 
 
Vice Chair Akamine entered the meeting at 11:02 a.m. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statues (HRS) §92-7(a), the Board may, when deemed necessary, 
hold an executive session on any agenda item without written public notice if the Executive 
Session was not anticipated in advance. Any such executive session shall be held pursuant to 
HRS §92-4 and shall be limited to those items described in HRS §92-5(a). 

 
1. Pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes § 92-4 and § 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this Executive 

Session is for the Board to consult with the Board's attorney on questions and issues 
pertaining to the Board's powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities as it relates to 
Recruitment Incentives for the Manager and Chief Engineer position. 

 
2. Pursuant to Hawai‘i Revised Statutes § 92-4 and § 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this Executive 

Session is for the Board to consult with the Board's attorney on questions and issues 
pertaining to the Board's powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities as it relates to 
correspondence from Goodfellow Bros. regarding Contractor Pay Application Approval 
Process, Change Order Requests and Response, Request for Equitable Adjustment. 

 
Vice Chair moved to go into executive session, and to invite the Manager and Chief Engineer to 
participate as a resource, seconded by Mr. Hull; with no objections, motion carried with 5 Ayes. 
 
The board resumed in open session at 11:45 a.m. 
 
Vice Chair Akamine moved to ratify actions taken in Executive Session, seconded by Ms. 
Simonton; with no objections, motion carried with 5 Ayes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Board member Simonton moved to adjourn the Regular Board meeting at 11:47 a.m., seconded 
by Mr. Hull; with no objections, motion carried 5:0. 

 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,     Approved, 
 
 
 
Cherisse Zaima      Julie Simonton 
Commission Support Clerk     Secretary, Board of Water Supply 



 

Consent 

Calendar 

Page 11



MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-27 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board Policy 8, Charges for 

Department Labor and Equipment on Jobbing Work and Capital Projects by Department 
Personnel 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the proposed changes to Board Policy 8, Charges for 
Department Labor and Equipment on Jobbing Work and Capital Projects by Department Personnel. 
 
FUNDING:  

Not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of this policy is to establish reimbursable labor, materials and vehicles/equipment 
direct and overhead costs for service installation, jobbing work and capital projects. 
 
The policy has been reformatted for readability.  There are some substantive changes to the policy. 

 
1. Previously labor was computed using the average wage and overhead for the Department’s 

field crews.  Improvements in work order software now allow staff to determine individual 
personnel and hours for each job.  Reimbursement will be calculated for each employee.  The 
overhead or fringe costs will be established using the County’s most current Fringe Cost 
Rates.  These are published each year. 

2. Vehicle and equipment charges were computed based on the actual cost of depreciation, fuel, 
maintenance, and repairs.  This is difficult to calculate on a per job basis. Instead, staff is 
recommending that the current IRS mileage rate, where applicable, and current FEMA 
Schedule of Equipment Rates be used. 

3. There are no changes recommended to the overhead charge for materials. 
 

Overall, this will simplify the reimbursement process and allows others to more easily estimate 
the reimbursable costs. 

 
MRK/mja 
 
Attachment:   Board Policy 8, Charges for Department Labor and Equipment on Jobbing Work and Capital Projects by 

Department Personnel 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-27/ Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board Policy 8, Charges for Department 
Labor and Equipment on Jobbing Work and Capital Projects by Department Personnel (10/21/21):mja 

Page 12



Page 13



 

 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY POLICY NO. 8 
 
RE: Charges for Department Labor and Equipment on Jobbing Work and 
Capital Projects by Department Personnel 
 
Purpose 

Establish reimbursable labor, materials and vehicles/equipment direct and overhead costs for 
service installation, jobbing work and capital projects. 
 
 
Labor 

1. Labor will be reimbursed at the employee’s hourly rate.  In computing the overhead on 
laborOverhead costs include: will be calculated using the County of Kauai’s most current fringe 
benefit guidelinescost rates. for service installation, jobbing work and capital projects, the 
following costs shall be recovered: 

 
a)1. Vacation 
b)2. Sick Leave 
c)3. Holidays 
d)4. Retirement 
e)5. F.I.C.A. 
f)6. Health, Dental and other employee insurance paid for by the Department 
g)7. Office and Engineering Support 

 
2. MaterialsA single labor charge may be established for all field personnel by 

averaging their wages and applying the overhead established above. 

 

3. Overhead charges for materialsMaterials  shall be computed to recover costscosts include 
: of additional 30% of the purchase priceing for , storage, and handling of the materials. 

 

Vehicles/Equipment 

4. Vehicle and equipment charges shall be portal to portalbased on mileage or running 
hours.  Mileage will be based upon the current IRS mileage rate.  Vehicles and equipment not 
covered by the IRS mileage rate will use the most recent FEMA Schedule of Equipment Rates. 
and shall equal the estimate of actual costs including depreciation, fuel, maintenance and repairs. 

 

5. The rates shall be reviewed and revised annually and revised as necessary to reflect actual 
costs. 
 
 
 

______________________________________  _______________________ 

Page 14



 

 

Chairperson, Kauai Board of Water Supply    Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RE:  CHARGES FOR DEPARTMENT LABOR AND EQUIPMENT ON JOBBING WORK 

AND CAPITAL PROJECTS BY DEPARTMENT PERSONNEL 
 
Effective Date: October 21, 2021  
Supersedes:  May 14, 1970 

Page 15



MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-28 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to Rescind Board Policy 12, Retention Periods and 

Destruction of Records 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board rescind Board Policy 12, Retention Periods and Destruction of 

Records. 
 
FUNDING:  

Not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Department follows all applicable County’s policies.  It would be redundant to have a Board 
policy stating that we follow the County’s records retention policy.  
 
MRK/mja 
 
Attachment:   Board Policy 12, Retention Periods and Destruction of Records 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-28/ Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board Policy 12, Retention Periods and 
Destruction of Records (10/21/21):mja 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-29 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to Rescind to Board Policy 15, Payment of Claims and 

Disbursement of Funds 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board rescind Board Policy 15, Payment of Claims and Disbursement of 
Funds. 
 
FUNDING:  

Not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Board Policy 15 was originally promulgated in 1970.  The policy is unnecessary to comply with 
HRS 54-25. HRS 54 envisions an organizational structure of the County that does not correlate 
with the Charter. Policy 15 predates changes in case law on preemption. The Supreme Court of 
Hawai‘i has held that the legislature delegated the administration of the waterworks to the 
counties. Hawaii Gov't Employees' Ass'n, Am. Fed'n of State, Cty. & Mun. Emps., Loc. 152, 
AFL-CIO v. Maui, 59 Haw. 65, 79-80 (1978). As such, where the Charter speaks to a matter 
related to the waterworks, the Charter controls.  
 
There are other policies which already address disbursement of funds (e.g., the Water Utility 
Fund, Reserve Fund). The reporting under this policy would be covered under the reporting 
requirements of the other policies.  Therefore, the policy is redundant. 
 
 
MRK/mja 
 
Attachment:   Board Policy 15, Payment of Claims and Disbursement of Funds 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-29/ Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board Policy 15, Payment of Claims and 
Disbursement of Funds (10/21/21):mja 

Page 20



Page 21



MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-30 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action on Proposed Changes to Board Policy 19, Travel 

Allowance Excess Expenditures 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board approve the proposed changes to Board Policy 19, Travel  
Allowance Excess Expenditures. 
 
FUNDING:  

Not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of the policy is to establish Department approval authority for travel costs in excess of 
those authorized by the County’s existing travel policy. 
 
The policy has been reformatted for readability and to identify policy execution responsibilities 
more easily.  Redundant language was removed.  There are not any substantive changes to the 
policy.  
 
 
 
MRK/mja 
 
Attachment:   Board Policy 19, Travel Allowance Excess Expenditures 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-30/ Board Policy 19, Travel Allowance Excess Expenditures (10/21/21):mja 

Page 22



BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY POLICY NO. 19 

RE: Travel Allowance Excess Expenditures 

Purpose 
Establish Department approval authority for travel costs in excess of those authorized by the 
County’s existing travel policy. 

Board Chair Responsibilities 
The Department will follow the County of Kauai Travel Policy except that all excess expenditure 
requests shall be submitted to the Board Chair for approval or disapproval prior to travel. 
Reimbursement is not guaranteed unless prior approval is obtained. 

Employee Responsibilities 
When prior approval cannot be obtained, employees shall submit the attached form to the Board 
Chair to request compensation for travel expenses greater than allowed in the County’s policy.  
The submittal will include all receipts and justification.   

_________________________________________ ______________________ 
Chair, Board of Water Supply       Date 

RE: TRAVEL ALLOWANCE EXCESS EXPENDITURES 

Effective Date: October 21, 2021 
Supersedes:  February 21, 1986 

Page 23



REQUEST FOR TRAVEL ALLOWANCE EXCESS EXPENDITURES 

CLAIMANT NAME:  Enter text. DATE:  Click or tap to enter a date. 

___________________________________________ 
CLAIMANT SIGNATURE 

PURPOSE OF TRIP:  Click or tap here to enter text. 

Per Diem & Business Expense Amount Ground Transportation Amount 
Enter text. $XXX.XX Enter text. $XXX.XX 
Enter text. $XXX.XX Enter text. $XXX.XX 
Enter text. $XXX.XX Enter text. $XXX.XX 
Enter text. $XXX.XX Enter text. $XXX.XX 

Total $XXX.XX Total $XXX.XX 
Less Per Diem Allowance ($XXX.XX) Less Per Diem Allowance ($XXX.XX) 

Excess $XXX.XX Excess $XXX.XX 

REASON FOR ALLOWANCE EXCESS:  Click or tap here to enter text. 

☐APPROVED ☐DISAPPROVED

__________________________________________ 
MANAGER AND CHIEF ENGINEER SIGNATURE 

__________________________________________ 
BOARD CHAIR SIGNATURE 

NOTE:  RECEIPTS OR PROOF OF EXPENDITURES MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS FORM. DRAFT

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-31 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of Water Facility from the 
Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for the Kulana Subdivision Onsite Water System 
Phase 2; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001; Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Conveyance of Water Facility (COWF) whereby 
the Kulana Association of Apartment Owners transfer unto the Board of Water Supply, County 
of Kaua’i, all of its right, title and interest to the water facilities, in place complete, identified in 
“Exhibit A” of the subject agreement.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Kulana Subdivision development installed new water facilities and appurtenances in 
accordance with the Board of Water Supply’s rules and regulation, standards and policies.  The 
development is in the final process of attaining a certificate of completion. 
 
OPTIONS:   
Option 1: Approve the Conveyance of Water Facility agreement. 
Pros: The facilities will be transferred to the Board of Water Supply, the project will 

move to closure and water service will be provided by the DOW. 
 
Cons: None.  
 
Option 2: Do not approve the Conveyance of Water Facility agreement. 
Pros: None 
 
Cons: The project will not be accepted and water service will not be provided. 
 
 
Attachments: Conveyance of Water Facility – Kulana Subdivision Onsite; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001, Kapa‘a, Kaua‘i, Hawai’i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-31/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of Water Facility from the Kulana 
Association of Apartment Owners, for the Kulana Subdivision Onsite Water System Phase 2; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001; Kapa‘a, 
Kaua’i, Hawaii (10/21/21) 
  

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-32 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement agreement from Kulana 

Association of Apartment Owners, for Kulana Subdivision Onsite Water System, Phase 2, 
 S-99-49; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001, Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Grant of Easement agreement; whereby, the above 
landowner, grant to the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i, easement “AU-20” on, over and under 
that certain parcel of land located TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001 as specified above in Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i, for 
the following work: 
 

1. Reading of water meters and for the construction, installation, re-installation, maintenance, repair, 
and removal of potable water pipelines and related meters, valves, and other associated waterworks 
facility improvements and appurtenances. 

 
Further, the GRANTEE shall indemnify and save the GRANTOR harmless from and against all damage to 
the GRANTOR’s property and all liability for injury to or the death of persons when such damage, injury, 
or death is caused by the negligence of the GRANTEE, its officers, agents and employees while using the 
easement area.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the subject project, the above owner installed potable water pipelines and service laterals, meters, 
valves and other associated waterworks appurtenances. The water facilities are on private property which 
requires an easement in favor of Department of Water for meter reading and future maintenance and repair. 
 
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve the Grant of Easement Agreement.  
Pro: The project will be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water service 

will be able to be available with a project certification completion. 
Con:  None. 
 
Option 2:  Do not approve the Grant of Easement Agreement. 
Pro: None.  
Con:  The project will not be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water 

service will not be able to be provided. 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: Grant of Easement “AU-20” – Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001, Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-32/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement agreement from Kulana Association of 
Apartment Owners, for Kulana Subdivision Onsite Water System, Phase 2, S-99-49; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001, Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



   DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-33 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of Water Facility from the 
Kulana Association of Apartment Owners, for the Kulana Subdivision Offsite Water System and 
0.25 MG Tank; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001 and (4) 4-4-003:089; Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Conveyance of Water Facility (COWF) whereby 
the Kulana Association of Apartment Owners transfer unto the Board of Water Supply, County 
of Kaua’i, all of its right, title and interest to the water facilities, in place complete, identified in 
“Exhibit A” of the subject agreement.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Kulana Subdivision development installed a new 0.25 MG tank, offsite water facilities and 
appurtenances in accordance with the Board of Water Supply’s rules and regulation, standards 
and policies.  The development is in the final process of attaining a certificate of completion. 
 
OPTIONS:   
Option 1: Approve the Conveyance of Water Facility agreement. 
Pros: The facilities will be transferred to the Board of Water Supply, the project will 

move to closure and water service will be provided by the DOW. 
 
Cons: None.  
 
Option 2: Do not approve the Conveyance of Water Facility agreement. 
Pros: None 
 
Cons: The project will not be accepted and water service will not be provided. 
 
 
Attachments: Conveyance of Water Facility – Kulana Subdivision Offsite and 0.25 MG Tank; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001 and  

(4) 4-4-003:089, Kapa‘a, Kaua‘i, Hawai’i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-33/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of Water Facility from the Kulana Association of 
Apartment Owners, for the Kulana Subdivision Offsite Water System and 0.25 MG Tank; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001 and (4) 4-4-003:089; Kapa‘a, 
Kaua’i, Hawai’i 
 
 

Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



   DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-34 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Right of Entry Agreement with Kulana 
Association of Apartment Owners, for the Roadway Lot 21 (referred to as Kulana Place) of the 
Kulana Subdivision, S-99-49, TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001; Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i  

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Right of Entry (ROE) agreement with the subject 
owners. The purpose of the Right of Entry is to allow the DOW access for the reading of water 
meters and for the construction, installation, maintenance, repair, and removal of potable 
pipelines and related meters, valves, and other associated waterworks facilities improvements 
and appurtenances, and further for ingress and egress at any time to, from, and through the 
easement area, with or without vehicles or equipment, as the Grantee deems necessary for the 
proper operation of its water system. 
 
The right of entry shall commence upon execution and shall automatically expire at such time 
that the Grantor conveys the new roadways to the County of Kaua’i pursuant to the tentative 
subdivision approval granted by the Planning Commission for the Kulana Subdivision. 
 
 
Further, BWS approval is specifically requested of the indemnification provision in the 
agreement; wherein, the BWS agrees to “…indemnify and hold harmless the Grantor from and 
against any claims for injuries or damages of any kind occasioned, in whole or in part, by 
Grantee’s gross negligent actions or omissions arising out of its exercise of this right of entry”. 
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Kulana development involved installation of waterlines within roadway lots to be conveyed 
to the County of Kaua’i.  The waterlines have been connected to the DOW system and is in the 
process of attaining certificate of completion. At the present time, the roadway lots have not been 
conveyed to the County of Kaua’i and the DOW requires a right of entry agreement to access 
and maintain the water facilities contained within it. 
 
OPTIONS:   
Option 1: Approve the Right of Entry agreement. 
Pros: This will allow the DOW legally to operate and maintain the newly constructed 

facilities on the subject property. 
 
Cons: The DOW and Board must agree to the indemnification provisions in the 

agreement.  
 
Option 2: Do not approve the Right of Entry agreements. 

Page 91



Pros: The DOW and Board does not have to agree to the indemnification provisions in 
the agreement. 

 
Cons: The project would be connected to our system with no legal access for DOW to 

operate and maintain as intended and delay certificate of completion. 
 
 
Attachments: Right of Entry Agreement – Kulana Subdivision Offsite; TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001, Kapa‘a, Kaua‘i, Hawai’i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-34/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Right of Entry Agreement with Kulana Association of Apartment 
Owners, for the Roadway Lot 21 (referred to as Kulana Place) of the Kulana Subdivision, S-99-49, TMK: (4) 4-3-011:001; Kapa‘a, Kaua’i, 
Hawai’i  
 

Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



   DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-35 

October 21, 2021 

Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Right of Entry Agreement with Kulana 
Association of Apartment Owners, for the Lot 8 (por.) of the Thronas Subdivision;  
TMK: (4) 4-4-003:089; Kapa‘a, Kaua'i, Hawai'i  

RECOMMENDATION:  
It is recommended that the Board approve the Right of Entry (ROE) agreement with the subject 
owners. The purpose of the Right of Entry is to allow the DOW access for operation and 
maintenance of the Kulana Subdivision Offsite Water System and 0.25 MG Tank, the reading of 
water meters and for the construction, installation, maintenance, repair, and removal of potable 
pipelines and related meters, valves, and other associated waterworks facilities improvements 
and appurtenances, and further for ingress and egress at any time to, from, and through the 
easement area, with or without vehicles or equipment, as the Grantee deems necessary for the 
proper operation of its water system. 

The right of entry shall commence upon execution and shall automatically expire at such time 
that the Grantor conveys the new water tank property to the Board of Water Supply, pursuant to 
the final subdivision approval granted by the Planning Commission for the Subdivision of Lot 8 
of the Thronas Subdivision. 

Further, BWS approval is specifically requested of the indemnification provision in the 
agreement; wherein, the BWS agrees to “…indemnify and hold harmless the Grantor from and 
against any claims for injuries or damages of any kind occasioned, in whole or in part, by 
Grantee’s gross negligent actions or omissions arising out of its exercise of this right of entry”. 

FUNDING:  N/A. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Kulana development involved installation of waterlines and construction of a potable water 
storage tank on a lot to be conveyed to the Board of Water Supply.  The waterlines and water 
storage tank have been constructed and connected to the DOW system and is in the process of 
attaining certificate of completion. At the present time, the tank lot has not been conveyed to the 
Board of Water Supply and requires a right of entry agreement to access and maintain the water 
facilities contained within it. 

OPTIONS:   
Option 1: Approve the Right of Entry agreement. 
Pros: This will allow the DOW legally to operate and maintain the newly constructed 

facilities on the subject property. 

Cons: The DOW and Board must agree to the indemnification provisions in the 
agreement.  

Page 106



Option 2: Do not approve the Right of Entry agreements. 
Pros: The DOW and Board does not have to agree to the indemnification provisions in 

the agreement. 
 
Cons: The project would be connected to our system with no legal access for DOW to 

operate and maintain as intended and delay certificate of completion. 
 
 
Attachments: Right of Entry Agreement – Kulana Subdivision Tank; TMK: (4) 4-4-003:089, Kapa‘a, Kaua‘i, Hawai’i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-35/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Right of Entry Agreement with Kulana Association of Apartment 
Owners, for the Lot 8 (por.) of the Thronas Subdivision; TMK: (4) 4-4-003:089; Kapa‘a, Kaua’i, Hawai’i 
 

Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



   DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-36 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of Water Facility from 

Kukui‘ula Development Company, LLC for Parcel E, Subdivision No. S-2020-02;  
 TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Conveyance of Water Facility (COWF) whereby 
Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC transfer unto the Board of Water Supply, County of 
Kauai, all of its right, title and interest to the water facilities, in place complete, identified in 
“Exhibit A” of the subject agreement.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Kukui‘ula  development installed new water facilities and appurtenances in accordance with 
the Board of Water Supply’s rules and regulation, standards and policies.  The development is in 
the final process of attaining a certificate of completion. 
 
OPTIONS:   
Option 1: Approve the Conveyance of Water Facility agreement. 
Pros: The facilities will be transferred to the Board of Water Supply, the project will 

move to closure and water service will be provided by the DOW. 
 
Cons: None.  
 
Option 2: Do not approve the Conveyance of Water Facility agreement. 
Pros: None 
 
Cons: The project will not be accepted and water service will not be provided. 
 
 
Attachments: Conveyance of Water Facility – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020, Kōloa, Kaua‘i, 

Hawai’i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-36/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Conveyance of Water Facility from Kukui‘ula  Development 
Company, LLC for Parcel E, Subdivision No. S-2020-02; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-37 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement agreements from Kukui‘ula 

Development Company, LLC for Parcel E, Subdivision No. S-2020-02;  
 TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Grant of Easement agreements; whereby, the above 
landowner, grant to the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i, easements “AU-1” and “W-1” on, over 
and under that certain parcel of land located TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020 (por.) as specified above in 
Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i, for the following work: 
 

1. Reading of water meters and for the construction, installation, re-installation, maintenance, repair, 
and removal of potable water pipelines and related meters, valves, and other associated waterworks 
facility improvements and appurtenances. 

 
Further, the GRANTEE shall indemnify and save the GRANTOR harmless from and against all damage to 
the GRANTOR’s property and all liability for injury to or the death of persons when such damage, injury, 
or death is caused by the negligence of the GRANTEE, its officers, agents and employees while using the 
easement areas.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the subject project, the above owner installed potable water pipelines and service laterals, meters, 
valves and other associated waterworks appurtenances. The water facilities are on private property which 
requires easements in favor of Department of Water for meter reading and future maintenance and repair. 
 
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve the Grant of Easement Agreements.  
Pro: The project will be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water service 

will be able to be available with a project certification completion. 
Con:  None.  
 
Option 2:  Do not approve the Grant of Easement Agreements. 
Pro: None.  
Con:  The project will not be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water 

service will not be able to be provided. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Grant of Easement “AU-1” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 Grant of Easement “W-1” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-022:020 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-37/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement agreements from Kukui‘ula Development Company, LLC for 
Parcel E, Subdivision No. S-2020-02; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:083 and 020 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
 

Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-38 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement agreement from Kukui‘ula 

Development Company, LLC for Parcel G, Subdivision No. S-2019-19;  
 TMK: (4) 2-6-022:070, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Grant of Easement agreement; whereby, the above 
landowner, grant to the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i, easement “AU-1” on, over and under 
that certain parcel of land located TMK: (4) 2-6-022:070 as specified above in Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i, for 
the following work: 
 

1. Reading of water meters and for the construction, installation, re-installation, maintenance, repair, 
and removal of potable water pipelines and related meters, valves, and other associated waterworks 
facility improvements and appurtenances. 

 
Further, the GRANTEE shall indemnify and save the GRANTOR harmless from and against all damage to 
the GRANTOR’s property and all liability for injury to or the death of persons when such damage, injury, 
or death is caused by the negligence of the GRANTEE, its officers, agents and employees while using the 
easement area.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the subject project, the above owner installed potable water pipelines and service laterals, meters, 
valves and other associated waterworks appurtenances. The water facilities are on private property which 
requires an easement in favor of Department of Water for meter reading and future maintenance and repair. 
 
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve the Grant of Easement Agreement.  
Pro: The project will be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water service 

will be able to be available with a project certification completion. 
Con:  None. 
 
Option 2:  Do not approve the Grant of Easement Agreement. 
Pro: None.  
Con:  The project will not be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water 

service will not be able to be provided. 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: Grant of Easement “AU-1” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-022:070, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-38/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve a Grant of Easement agreement from Kukui‘ula Development Company, LLC for 
Parcel G, Subdivision No. S-2019-19; TMK: (4) 2-6-022:070, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
 

Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-39 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re: Discussion and Possible Action to approve Grant of Easement agreements from Kukui‘ula Development 

Company, LLC for Kainani Phase 2, Subdivision No. S-2019-13;  
 TMK: (4) 2-6-021:017, (4) 2-6-021:005 (por.) and (4) 2-6-021:016 (por.) Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   
It is recommended that the Board approve the Grant of Easement agreements; whereby, the above landowner, 
grant to the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i, easements “AU-1”, “W-1”, “W-2”, “W-3” and “W-4” on, 
over and under that certain parcel of land located TMK: (4) 2-6-021:017, (4) 2-6-021:005 (por.) and (4) 2-6-
021:016 (por.) as specified above in Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i, for the following work: 
 

1. Reading of water meters and for the construction, installation, re-installation, maintenance, repair, and 
removal of potable water pipelines and related meters, valves, and other associated waterworks facility 
improvements and appurtenances. 

 
Further, the GRANTEE shall indemnify and save the GRANTOR harmless from and against all damage to the 
GRANTOR’s property and all liability for injury to or the death of persons when such damage, injury, or death 
is caused by the negligence of the GRANTEE, its officers, agents and employees while using the easement 
areas.  
 
FUNDING:  N/A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the subject project, the above owner installed potable water pipelines and service laterals, meters, valves 
and other associated waterworks appurtenances. The water facilities are on private property which requires 
easements in favor of Department of Water for meter reading and future maintenance and repair. 
 
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve the Grant of Easement Agreements.  
Pro: The project will be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water service 

will be able to be available with a project certification completion. 
Con:  None.  
 
Option 2:  Do not approve the Grant of Easement Agreements. 
Pro: None.  
Con:  The project will not be completed as designed and accepted by the Department and water 

service will not be able to be provided. 
 
 
Attachments: Grant of Easement “AU-1” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-021:017, Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 Grant of Easement “W-1” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-021:005 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 Grant of Easement “W-2” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-021:016 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 Grant of Easement “W-3” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-021:016 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 Grant of Easement “W-4” – Kukui‘ula  Development Company, LLC., TMK: (4) 2-6-021:016 (por.), Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 
 
 
Mgrrp/October 2021/22-39/ Discussion and Possible Action to approve Grant of Easement agreements from Kukui‘ula Development Company, LLC for 
Kainani Phase 2, Subdivision No. S-2019-13; TMK: (4) 2-6-021:017, (4) 2-6-021:005 (por.) and (4) 2-6-021:016 (por.) Kōloa, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



 

New 

Business 

Page 211



 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-40 
 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
 
Re: Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 22-05, honoring national Imagine a Day 

Without Water on October 21, 2021. 
 
It is requested that the Board approve Resolution 22-05, to acknowledge and honor national 
Imagine a Day Without Water, a campaign celebrated on October 21st to educate and bring 
awareness to the value of water and the critical role water infrastructure plays in today’s 
communities. 
 
Attachment:  Resolution No. 22-05 Imagine A Day Without Water 
 
 
Mgrrp/September 2021/22-40/ Discussion and Adoption of Resolution No. 22-05, Imagine A Day Without Water  
 
 

Page 212



RESOLUTION NO.   22-05 
(10/21) 

        
   

Honoring national 
Imagine a Day Without Water 

 
WHEREAS, Imagine a Day Without Water (IADWW) is a national education campaign celebrated 

annually, on October 21st and brings together diverse stakeholders nationwide to highlight how water is essential, 
invaluable, and in need of investment, 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Water (DOW) has adopted the IADWW awareness campaign as an annual 

opportunity to educate local water users about the value of water and the appreciation of water services, systems 
and water resource management agencies through educational social media campaigns, local events and joint 
partnerships with sister County and State water agencies throughout Hawai'i,  

 
WHEREAS, on this day we call attention to the value of water; our access to clean water, water uses for 

health and sanitation needs, for public service needs and all uses of water for life giving purposes, 
 
WHEREAS, on this day we also highlight the critical role that water infrastructure plays in our nation; it 

is the lifeline of our communities here on Kaua'i and worldwide, but is often out of sight, 
 
WHEREAS, nationally there are still approximately two million Americans living without safe and 

reliable water and wastewater services, often relying on bottled water and potentially living in unsanitary 
conditions and they deserve better, 

 
WHEREAS, the DOW operates and maintains nine public water systems and works diligently to meet 

and/or exceed compliance of state and federal safe drinking water standards ensuring excellent water quality for 
our communities, including over 22,000 residential, agricultural, and business customers, 

 
WHEREAS, professional leadership for water is key to securing our water future and DOW prioritizes 

water system resiliency through long-range planning, investments in capital improvement projects, 
implementation of technological advances at water facilities and continued maintenance to address our island’s 
aging infrastructure challenges, 

 
WHEREAS, DOW and the Kaua'i Board of Water Supply publicly conducts discussions and makes 

strategic decisions to address its water systems improvements and expansions projects while embracing its mission 
statement; to provide safe, affordable, sufficient water service through wise management of it resources and with 
excellent customer service for the people of Kaua'i, 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, COUNTY OF 
KAUA'I, STATE OF HAWAI'I, that on behalf of the water-consuming customers on Kaua'i, the Board 
acknowledges the critical role  and value of water and our water infrastructure, the importance of water 
professionals and providing safe, affordable, sufficient drinking water for our communities.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution be posted at the Department of Water main 

offices as a reminder of the national Imagine a Day Without Water campaign and the value of water. 
 
       
 
      We do certify that the foregoing was duly adopted by 

       the Board of Water Supply during its meeting on 
       October 21, 2021.   

       
  
      _______________________________________ 
           Gregory Kamm, Chairperson 
 
       
      _______________________________________ 
            Julie Simonton, Secretary 

Page 213



4398 Pua Loke Street Līhu'e, HI  96766  Phone:  808-245-5400 Fax:  808-245-5813 Operations Fax:  808-245-5402 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-41 

October 21, 2021 

Re:  Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for Indemnification for Zoom 
between the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and Zoom 

RECOMMENDATION: 
The Department recommends that the Board approve Option 1, which will allow the Department 
to move forward with the purchase and implementation of Zoom.   

FUNDING: N/A 

BACKGROUND: 
The Department’s Information Technology Division is looking to procure Zoom for the monthly 
Board meetings. Zoom will have easier access to for the public to participate and interact with the 
Board and meets the Hawaii’s Sunshine Law new requirements. 

However, before the IT Division can move forward with the software and hardware 
implementation Board approval is required.  The agreement contains language for unspecified 
future obligations such as indemnification and governing law provisions. The County Attorney’s 
Office has reviewed and approved the Terms and Conditions for Zoom. 

The sections within the agreement that reference Charges and Cancellation, Indemnification, and 
Arbitration Fees are shown below: 

ZOOM TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
CHARGES AND CANCELLATION. You agree that Zoom may charge to Your credit card or other 
payment mechanism selected by You and approved by Zoom (“Your Account”) all amounts due 
and owing for the Services, including taxes and service fees, set up fees, subscription fees, or any 
other fee or charge associated with Your Account. Zoom may change prices at any time, 
including changing from a free service to a paid service and charging for Services that were 
previously offered free of charge; provided, however, that Zoom will provide you with prior 
notice and an opportunity to terminate Your Account if Zoom changes the price of a Service to 
which you are subscribed and will not charge you for a previously free Service unless you have 
been notified of the applicable fees and agreed to pay such fees. You agree that in the event 
Zoom is unable to collect the fees owed to Zoom for the Services through Your Account, Zoom 
may take any other steps it deems necessary to collect such fees from You and that You will be 
responsible for all costs and expenses incurred by Zoom in connection with such collection 
activity, including collection fees, court costs and attorneys’ fees. You further agree that Zoom 
may collect interest at the lesser of 1.5% per month or the highest amount permitted by law on 
any amounts not paid when due. You may cancel your subscription at any time. If you cancel, 
you will not be billed for any additional terms of service, and service will continue until the end 

Page 214

mailto:jbanwait@kauaiwater.org
mailto:mknoff@kauaiwater.org
mailto:jtait@kauaiwater.org
mailto:mknoff@kauaiwater.org


Manager’s Report No. 21-41 
October 21, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

 

4398 Pua Loke Street Līhu'e, HI  96766  Phone:  808-245-5400 Fax:  808-245-5813 Operations Fax:  808-245-5402 

 

of the current Subscription Term. If you cancel, you will not receive a refund for any service 
already paid for. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION. You agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Zoom, its affiliates, 
officers, directors, employees, consultants, agents, suppliers and Resellers from any and all third 
party claims, liability, damages and/or costs (including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees) 
arising from Your use of the Services, Your violation of this Agreement or the infringement or 
violation by You or any other user of Your account, of any intellectual property or other right of 
any person or entity or applicable law. 

 
ARBITRATION FEES. If You are unable to afford the arbitration costs, Zoom will advance those 
costs to You, subject to the arbitrator’s determination if costs should be reimbursed to Zoom if 
Zoom prevails. For disputes involving more than $75,000, the AAA rules will govern payment of 
filing fees and the AAA’s and arbitrator’s fees and expenses. 

 
 
  
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve Manager’s Report. 
Pro: The Department will be able to move forward with the purchase and 

implementation of Zoom. 
Cons: Status quo. No potential legal risk associated with indemnification, 

limitation of liability, arbitration, and governing law of the proposed Zoom 
application. 

  
Option 2: Deny request to approve Indemnification, Limitation of Liability, 

Arbitration, and Governing Law. 
Pro: Status quo. No potential legal risk associated with indemnification, 

limitation of liability, arbitration, and governing law of the proposed Zoom 
application. 

  
Cons: The Department would not be able to improve its communication with the 

public or be in compliance with Hawaii Sunshine Law. 
 
 
 
JB/mja  
  
Mgrrp/June 2021/21-41/ Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for Indemnification for Zoom between the 
Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and Zoom 
 

Page 215



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 22-42 
 
October 21, 2021 
 
Re:   Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for Indemnification for Granicus 

between the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and Granicus 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Department recommends that the Board approve Option 1, which will allow the Department 
to move forward with the purchase and implementation of Granicus. 
  
FUNDING: N/A 
  
BACKGROUND: 
The Department’s Information Technology Division is looking to procure Granicus for the 
monthly Board meetings. Granicus will have easier access to for the public to participate and 
interact with the Board and meets the Hawaii’s Sunshine Law new requirements. 
  
However, before the IT Division can move forward with the software and hardware 
implementation, Board approval is required as the agreement contains language for unspecified 
future obligations such as indemnification and governing law provisions. The County Attorney’s 
Office has reviewed and approved the Terms and Conditions for Granicus. 
  
The sections within the agreement that references indemnification is shown below: 
  
GRANICUS TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
Indemnification by Client. Client shall defend, indemnify, and hold Granicus harmless from and against 
any Claims, and shall pay all Losses, to the extent arising out of or related to (a) Client’s (or that of 
anyone authorized by Client or using logins or passwords assigned to Client) use or modification of any 
Granicus Products and Services; (b) any Client content; or (c) Client’s violation of applicable law. 

 
  
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve Manager’s Report. 
Pro: The Department will be able to move forward with the purchase and 

implementation of Granicus. 
Cons: Status quo. No potential legal risk associated with indemnification, 

limitation of liability, arbitration, and governing law of the proposed 
Granicus application. 

  
Option 2: Deny request to approve Indemnification, Limitation of Liability, 

Arbitration, and Governing Law. 

Page 216



Pro: Status quo. No potential legal risk associated with indemnification, 
limitation of liability, arbitration, and governing law of the proposed 
Granicus application. 

  
Cons: The Department would not be able to improve its communication with the 

public or be in compliance with Hawaii Sunshine Law. 
 
 
 
JB/mja  
  
Mgrrp/June 2021/21-42/  Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for Indemnification for Granicus 
between the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and Granicus 

Page 217



 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, COUNTY OF KAUA'I  
 

BOARD MEETING DATES FOR 2022 
 

(Department of Water, County of Kaua'i Rules & Regulations, Part 1, Section II – Regular Meetings of the Board 
shall be held in the Department of Water’s Board Room or any designated place once each month, or on a date to be 
determined by the Board.) 
 

 
1. January  Thursday, January 20   10:00 a.m. 

 
2. February  Thursday, February 24  10:00 a.m. 
 
3. March   Thursday, March 24   10.00 a.m. 
 
4. April   Thursday, April 21   10:00 a.m. 
 
5. May   Thursday, May 19   10:00 a.m. 
 
6. June   Thursday, June 23   10:00 a.m. 
 
7. July   Thursday, July 21   10:00 a.m. 
 
8. August   Thursday, August 25   10:00 a.m. 
 
9. September  Thursday, September 22   10:00 a.m. 
 
10. October  Thursday, October 20   10:00 a.m. 
 
11. November  Thursday, November 17   10:00 a.m. 
 
12. December  Thursday, December 22  10:00 a.m. 

 

Page 218



 

Staff 

Reports 

Page 219



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

Fiscal report 9/2021 

FISCAL REPORT:  MONTHLY SUMMARY HIGHLIGHTS – SEPTEMBER, 2021

I. BUDGET SUMMARY VS. ACTUAL (see attached report for details)

YEAR TO DATE (YTD) BUDGET & ACTUAL EXPENSES SUMMARY – AS OF SEPTEMBER, 2021 
 BUDGET     vs       EXPENSED 

· Operating Expenses $10,865,133 $6,349,944 
· Debt Principal Payment 3,794,865 4,067,340 
· Capital Projects 19,367,928 78,495 
        TOTAL $34,027,926  $10,495,779 

REVENUES: VARIANCE = “ACTUAL” LESS “BUDGET”; POSITIVE INDICATES HIGHER PERFORMANCE 
THAN EXPECTED .  

• Total Revenue as of September, 2021 was 20% below projection.
o Water sales of $7.9 million (M) was $1.66M or 27% higher than projected.
o Other Water Revenue - Receipts of $28.5 thousand (K) was $46.5K below projection.
o Capital Contributions: Contributions from Federal & State Grants – $201.67K.
o Investment Income & Net Increase in FV of Investments –$75.4K.

OPERATING EXPENSES:  VARIANCE = BUDGET LESS ACTUAL 

EXPENSES; POSITIVE VARIANCE INDICATES LESS ACTUAL EXPENSES VS. BUDGET.  REVISED YTD 
BUDGET COLUMNS INCLUDE PO ROLLOVER FROM FY ENDING 2021.  

• YTD Operating Expenses before depreciation and amortization was $6.35M.   Total spending was $4.5M less
than budget.

o Employee Related Expenses –$2.76M with a 15% positive variance.
o Contracts & Services – $1.3M with a 75% positive variance.

 Professional Services, Other Services – Billing, Communication, Insurance and Repairs
and Maintenance for non-water systems are the main items contributing to the 75%
positive variance.

o Exceptional Expenses – None.
o Fuel & Utilities – $785.4K with a $38.8K or 5% negative variance.
o Bulk Water Purchase –$345K with a 24% positive variance.
o Office & Operating Supplies – $441.2K with 2% positive variance.
o Training, Travel & Meeting Expenses – $28K or 40% positive variance.
o Debt Service – Interest Expense - $681.2K.
o Depreciation & Amortization (non-cash expenses) is $1.78M.

NET OPERATING INCOME: 

• Net Operating Income before depreciation and amortization - $2.43M



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

Fiscal report 9/2021 

• Net Operating Income after depreciation & amortization was a positive $648.36K.

NON-OPERATING PROCEEDS  & DISBURSEMENTS  

• SRF Loan Proceeds – None.
• FRC – Facility Reserve Charge –$359.1K.
• YTD Debt Principal Payment is $4.1M.

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET: YTD DISBURSEMENTS = $78,495.44 

• Capital Projects: Water Utility Fund - $73.2K
• Capital Projects: FRC Fund – None
• Capital Projects: BAB Fund - $5.3K
• Capital Projects: SRF Loan Fund - None

II. COMPARATIVE CHARTS:

METERED CONSUMPTION: 

• September 2021, monthly metered consumption was 354.3 million gallons (mg) increased by 24.5 mg or 7% as compared
from the same month of FY 2021.

• Year to Date (YTD) metered consumption as of 9/30/21 was 1,160.7 mg with a YTD cumulative increase of 200.3 mg as
compared from the same month of FY 2021. 

III. COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET: SEE ATTACHED.

Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2021 (unadjusted). 

IV. OTHER FISCAL ONGOING ACTIVITIES/INITIATIVES:

• FY 2021 Financial Audit is in progress.  Draft Audit Report will be submitted to the November board meeting.
• Notice to Proceed was issued to Raftelis Consultants to commence the Water Rate Study.
• Microsoft Dynamics Great Plains will be replaced with a newer version. In addition, after several testing sessions, the 

Department is opting to have IT assist in rewriting the RFP to include additional requirements to meet expectations and 
needs.

• Develop Financial Policies for DOW – Statement of Qualifications were solicited for FY 2021.  Procurement has been delayed 
due to COVID 19 pandemic and was pushed on the side due to three other ongoing IT initiatives; the Depreciation Study 
which was completed in April 2021, the ongoing conversion of Microsoft (MS) Dynamics – Great Plains to MS Business Central 
and another ongoing project on the Beacon Meters; Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) upgrade to Advanced Metering 
Infrastructure (AMI).

• Budget Program Solution – It will be addressed concurrently with the Financial Policies Development procurement.
• FEMA update:  DOW submitted a request for an additional 30 months’ extension to complete two outstanding projects for 

FEMA grant funding reimbursement; the Makaleha tunnel and Mānoa Stream.
• The FEMA request for reimbursement for the Manoa stream will be rescinded because the job was completed in house.

MY/ 



Department of Water, County of Kauai
Monthly Budget Summary vs. Actual

SUMMARY 
9/30/2021 

Original Budget Revised Budget Actual Variance Revised YTD Budget YTD Actual *Variance Variance %
I.  OPERATING BUDGET  

 
Revenue  
Water Sales $2,085,217.00 $2,085,217.00 $2,534,129.12 $448,912.12  $6,255,651.00 $7,917,916.90 $1,662,265.90 27.%
Revenue from Public Fire Protection 181,192.00 181,192.00 183,469.50 2,277.50  543,576.00 550,408.50 6,832.50 1.%
Other Water Revenue 25,000.00 25,000.00 12,117.65 (12,882.35)  75,000.00 28,497.33 (46,502.67) (62.%)
Non Operating Proceeds Total 1,367,641.00 1,367,641.00 62,460.35 (1,305,180.65) 4,102,923.00 277,110.05 (3,825,812.95) (93.%)
Miscellaneous Revenues Total 709.00 709.00 8,375.65 7,666.65 2,127.00 8,731.70 6,604.70 311.%

   Total Revenue 3,659,759.00 3,659,759.00 2,800,552.27 (859,206.73)  10,979,277.00 8,782,664.48 (2,196,612.52) (20.%)

 
Total Employee-Related Expenses 1,087,505.00 1,087,505.00 907,693.54 179,811.46  3,262,515.00 2,761,139.75 501,375.25 15.%
Total Contracts & Services 641,941.00 641,941.00 351,024.44 290,916.56  5,196,309.32 1,307,879.60 3,888,429.72 75.%
Total Fuel & Utilities 248,865.00 248,865.00 255,156.28 (6,291.28)  746,595.00 785,358.83 (38,763.83) (5.%)
Total Bulk Water Purchase 151,681.00 151,681.00 4,726.78 146,954.22  456,407.96 345,028.67 111,379.29 24.%
Total Office & Operating Supplies 82,871.00 82,871.00 62,861.16 20,009.84  451,454.50 441,234.65 10,219.85 2.%
Total Training, Travel & Meeting Expenses 14,753.00 14,753.00 3,370.69 11,382.31  47,118.68 28,060.83 19,057.85 40.%
Total Interest Expense 234,911.00 234,911.00 201,186.35 33,724.65  704,733.00 681,241.63 23,491.37 3.%

   Total Operating Expenses 2,462,527.00 2,462,527.00 1,786,019.24 676,507.76  10,865,133.46 6,349,943.96 4,515,189.50 42.%
 

Net Operating Inc. (Loss) B4 Depr. & Am $1,197,232.00 $1,197,232.00 $1,014,533.03 ($182,698.97)  $114,143.54 $2,432,720.52 $2,318,576.98 2031.%
1,197,232.00 1,197,232.00 1,014,533.03 (182,698.97) ## 114,143.54 2,432,720.52 2,318,576.98

Total Depreciation & Amortization 661,895.00 661,895.00 587,553.33 74,341.67  1,985,685.00 1,784,357.21 201,327.79 10.%
 

Net Operating Income (Loss) 535,337.00 535,337.00 426,979.70 (108,357.30)  (1,871,541.46) 648,363.31 2,519,904.77 (135.%)
Non Operating Proceeds 1,191,667.00 1,191,667.00 (1,191,667.00)  3,575,001.00 (3,575,001.00) (100.%)
FRC-Facility Reserve Charge 66,667.00 66,667.00 66,705.00 38.00  200,001.00 359,125.00 159,124.00 80.%
Total Non Operating Proceeds 1,258,334.00 1,258,334.00 66,705.00 (1,191,629.00)  3,775,002.00 359,125.00 (3,415,877.00) (90.%)

 
Transfers Out(In) to Other Funds   

 
Debt Principal Payment (166,169.51) 166,169.51  3,794,864.89 4,067,340.07 (272,475.18) (7.%)

 
Net Proceeds (Expenditures) 1,793,671.00 1,793,671.00 659,854.21 (1,133,816.79)  (1,891,404.35) (3,059,851.76) (1,168,447.41) 62.%

 
II. CAPITAL BUDGET  
Capital Projects (See Attached for Details) 2,480,541.00 2,480,541.00 4,970.28 2,475,570.72  19,367,927.98 78,495.44 19,289,432.54 100.%

 
 

September FY 2022

Monthly Budget Summary vs. Actual 1 of 1 
 10/12/2021 10:46 AM



 1. DEPT OF WATER, COUNTY OF KAUAI NEW
For the Three Months Ending, September 30, 2021 

Current Assets
Cash $7,113,598.33
Equity interest in pooled investments $3,452,396.73

Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for doubtful accounts $1,638,375.08
Due from other funds
Unbilled accounts $1,378,549.63
Grants and subsidies $771,918.34
Accrued interest $209,775.36
Total receivables 3,998,618.41

Materials and supplies $1,089,731.90
Prepaid expenses $41,004.18
Total current asset 15,695,349.55

Restricted Assets:
Facility reserve charge funds:
Cash $3,691,499.84
Equity interest in pool investments $0.00
Accounts receivable and other $268,051.94
Total facility reserve charge funds 3,959,551.78

Bond funds:
Cash $1,197,242.97
Equity interest in pooled investments $8,641,771.78
Accrued interest $25,217.38
Total bond funds 9,864,232.13

Total restricted assets 13,823,783.91

Equity Interest in Pooled Investment - Noncurrent
Investment - Non-Current $24,482,215.70
Investment - Reserves $9,300,000.00
Investment - Debt Service Reserve $0.00
Total Equity Interest in Pooled Investment - Noncurrent 33,782,215.70

Utility Plant:
In service $346,650,839.24
Accumulated depreciation ($150,116,474.92)
Total utility plant 196,534,364.32

Construction work in progress $22,437,362.60
Total property, plant and equipment 218,971,726.92

Total assets 282,273,076.08

Assets and Deferred Outflows



 1. DEPT OF WATER, COUNTY OF KAUAI NEW
For the Three Months Ending, September 30, 2021 

Deferred Outflow of Resources - Deferred Refunding Costs, net $8,877,280.72
Total assets and deferred outflows 291,150,356.80

*Allowance for doubful accounts ($229,408.46)

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ($1,017,563.31)
Contracts payable, including retainages $627,728.66
Accrued Vacation And Compensatory Pay, current portion $516,762.47
Due to/Due From Other Funds $211.73
Customer overpayment $216,470.68
Customer deposits and advances $504,586.50
Current portion of long term debt $5,160,540.98
Current portion of capital lease obligation $0.03
Total current liabilities 6,008,737.74

Long-Term Debt $52,781,455.82
Capital Lease Obligation $0.00
OPEB & Retirement Benefits $31,511,261.13
Accrued Vacation and Compensatory Pay $971,573.47
Deferred Inflow of Assets $555,205.00
Total liabilities and deferred inflows: 91,828,233.16

Net Position:

Water Utility Reserves $9,300,000.00
Restricted FRC $3,951,701.02
Restricted Build American Bonds $9,757,199.46
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt $160,995,518.73
Unrestricted $15,317,704.43

Total net position 199,322,123.64
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position: 291,150,356.80

0.00

Liabilities and Net Position



40
3,

81
4

40
2,

54
3

35
4,

33
7

20%
68,605

36%
107,246

7%
24,479

(100,000)

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

Ju
ly

Au
gu

st

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

Ap
ril

M
ay

Ju
ne

W
at

er
 C

on
su

m
ed

 (1
00

0 
ga

l i
nc

re
m

en
ts

)

FY 2020

FY 2021

FY 2022

MONTHLY INC. (DEC.)

MONTHLY CONSUMPTION
FY 2020, 2021 & 2022

Total Through September      
FY 2020 = 1,097,710 kgal
FY 2021 =    960,364 kgal
FY 2022 = 1,160,694 kgal 



3.77
3.52

21%
%, 17.59%%, 20.03%

0.000

0.500

1.000

1.500

2.000

2.500

3.000

3.500

4.000

4.500
Co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
(B

ill
io

n 
G

al
lo

ns
)

FY 2020

FY 2021

FY 2022

%

YTD CUMULATIVE WATER CONSUMPTION
FY 2020, 2021 & 2022



$27,003,941 
$26,706,477 

11.6% 19.4% 15.8%

-$2 M

$0 M

$2 M

$4 M

$6 M

$8 M

$10 M

$12 M

$14 M

$16 M

$18 M

$20 M

$22 M

$24 M

$26 M

$28 M

$30 M

Ax
is

 T
itl

e

2020

2021

2022

% Inc. (Dec.)

CUMULATIVE BILLED REVENUES
FY 2020, 2021 & 2022



$28,901,184 

$26,818,982 

1% 14% 18%

-$4 M

-$2 M

$0 M

$2 M

$4 M

$6 M

$8 M

$10 M

$12 M

$14 M

$16 M

$18 M

$20 M

$22 M

$24 M

$26 M

$28 M

$30 M

$32 M

FY 2020

FY 2021

FY 2022

Change (FY21-FY20)

WU CUMULATIVE CASH RECEIPTS
FY 2020, 2021 & 2022

Through September
Cumulative Billed Revenues:  $7,956,768
Cumulative Cash Received:     $8,005,258 

Note:  July '19-'20 receipts included a $2.29 million state appropriation grant for the Hanapēpē



Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21
121 days and over $284,230 $270,064 $275,630 $285,894 $282,561 $282,746 $295,191 $305,635 $304,593 $299,428 $282,882 $240,783
91-120 days $27,822 $34,480 $31,783 $43,603 $34,412 $38,586 $28,801 $36,974 $31,973 $20,378 $23,726 $18,305
61-90 days $51,326 $54,366 $54,399 $54,665 $70,380 $59,276 $48,425 $56,984 $36,744 $44,461 $57,021 $73,096
31-60 days $145,805 $134,340 $123,236 $147,762 $147,068 $125,361 $103,880 $99,573 $111,658 $278,491 $142,845 $189,626
0-30 days $935,900 $1,019,504 $904,886 $1,038,902 $912,997 $782,492 $752,624 $1,129,799 $1,117,983 $1,216,650 $1,169,088 $1,111,708

65%
67%

65%
66%

63%
61% 61%

69% 70%
65% 70%

68%

10%

9%

9%

9%

10%

10%
8%

6% 7%

15%

9%
12%

4%

4%

4%

3%

5%

5%
4%

3% 2%

2%

3% 4%

2%
2%

2%

3%

2%

3%
2%

2% 2%

1%

1%1%

20%

18%
20%

18%

20%

22%
24%

19% 19%

16%

17% 15%

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

$2,000,000

Accounts Receivable Aging Summary Total thru September = $1,633,517.06
Total >30d thru 120d & up = $521,809.55



4398 Pua Loke Street Līhu'e, HI  96766  Phone:  808-245-5400 Fax:  808-245-5813  

 DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

“Water has no Substitute – Conserve it!” 

 
INFORMATION & EDUCATION SPECIALIST REPORT 

October 21, 2021 
 
Public Notices and Announcements  
All news releases were sent to media partners, published online via the Department’s Facebook page 
and on the County of Kaua`i’s website at www.kauai.gov/press-releases. Additionally, roadwork 
notices are emailed to the Department of Transportation (DOT) communications office.  
 
Service Announcements: 

 

Date Issued 
 

Water System &                    
Affected Service Areas  

 
 

Announcement 

 

Effective 
Date & Times 

 
Other Notices 

09-14-2021 
 
 

09-15-2021 

Kapa’a: Haua’ala 
Road, Hassard Road, 
Makamaka Street and 
Keapana Road 

Water service 
shutdown scheduled 
 
Water service 
shutdown extended 
until 5 p.m. 

September 15, 2021 
9 a.m. – 3 p.m. 

 
Extended to 5 p.m. 

Blackboard CTY 
Newspaper 

announcement 
(attached) 

 
 

Blackboard CTY 
09-22-2021 n/a Partial lane closure on 

Po'ipū Road 
September 22, 2021 

9 a.m. – 1 p.m. 
 

09-28-2021 Department 
Announcement 

KBWS appoints 
Joseph E. Tait a 
Manager and Chief 
Engineer 

n/a  

10-01-2021 Department 
Announcement 

Important billing 
service reminders for 
DOW customers 

n/a  

10-06-2021 
 
 
 

10-06-2021 

Waimea: Alawai Road Emergency water 
service shutdown on 
Alawai Road 
 
Water service 
shutdown extended 
until 4 p.m. 

October 6, 2021 
9 a.m. to 1p.m. 

 
 

Extended to 4 p.m. 

Blackboard CTY 
Door to door 

 
 

Blackboard CTY 

10-06-2021 
 
 
 
 

10-06-2021 

Kapa’a: on Kūhi‘ō 
Highway; between 
Waipouli Canal to Aleka 
Loop, Pouli Road and 
Kamoa Road 

Emergency water 
service shutdown due 
to mainline break 
 

 
Water service 
shutdown extended 
until 5:30 p.m. 

October 6, 2021 
1 p.m. to 4 p.m. 

 
 
 

Extended to 5:30 p.m. 
 

Blackboard CTY 
Direct calls  

 
 
 

Blackboard CTY 
Direct calls 

Page 230



Information & Education Specialist Report  
October 21, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

 

10-07-2021 
 
 
 
 

10-08-2021 

Kapa’a: on Kūhi‘ō 
Highway; between 
Waipouli Canal to Aleka 
Loop, Pouli Road and 
Kamoa Road 

Emergency water 
service shutdown due 
to mainline break 
 
 
Final update: water 
service restored  

October 7-8, 2021 
11:30 p.m. to 4 a.m. 

 
 
 
 

Water restored at 2 a.m. 

BlackBoard CTY 

 
Public Relations Program  
Community Outreach & Education 

 The Department’s “Wise Water Wednesday” campaign for the month of October includes 
information about billing services, Imagine a Day Without Water, conservation outdoors and 
water meter access.  The weekly campaign is published on the Department’s Facebook page, 
in radio advertisements and in the Garden Island Newspaper. 

 The Department donated 20 conservation kits to Island School’s High School sustainability 
class. 

 PR participated in a community meeting with the Habitat for Humanity’s, Ele’ele housing 
project on Sept. 23, 2021, to provide a presentation on applying for water service.  PR offered 
information on  DOW’s billing and account services, application process and shared 
conservation tips.  Approximately 20 homeowners were provided with a new customer 
welcome kit that included a kitchen aerator, shower timers, informational service brochures 
and water service applications.   

 The Department is being awarded the 2021 Excellence Award for its excellence in education 
and outreach efforts by the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) WaterSense program.  
This national award from EPA WaterSense is a first for the Department and its Public Relations 
(PR) section.  PR’s accomplishments proved that continuity in water education and community 
outreach can be possible during a pandemic.  Key efforts included participation in Fix-a-Leak 
week, a drive-thru water jug distribution during hurricane season and providing more than 550 
educational kits to students and teachers during fall break.  The award was officially announced 
on October 7, 2021, during a special awards ceremony at the WaterSmart Innovations 
conference in Las Vegas.  A virtual presentation of the award to the Department of Water is 
also available.  

 The Department is honoring “Imagine a Day Without Water” (IADWW) with a variety of 
activities to bring awareness to the value of water and highlight the critical role of water 
infrastructure.  During the month of October, the Department is hosting an educational lobby 
display about IADWW and offering free collapsible water bottles to customers.  From October 
18-22, 2021, the Department’s Facebook page will publish daily IADWW educational posts 
in partnership with other county and state agencies to host a joint social media campaign.  
Additionally, an employee IADWW photo contest is being hosted by the County of Kaua'i’s 
employee council. 
 

Upcoming Community Outreach & Educational Events  
 Water Emergency Preparedness Awareness – June to Nov. 2021 
 Imagine a Day Without Water – October 21, 2021  

 
Project WET Hawaii  

Page 231

mailto:jtait@kauaiwater.org


Information & Education Specialist Report  
October 21, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 

 Jonell Kaohelaulii participated in the bi-monthly newsletter committee meeting and provided 
monthly update for Hawai'i network to regional 1 council member on October 7, 2021.  

 
 
   
Attachments: The Garden Island (Water shutdown impacts Haua’ala Road today) 
   
 

Page 232



Published on 09-15-2021 in the Garden Island Newspaper 
 

 

Page 233



Month
Leak 

Repairs
Calls for 
Service

Meters 
Installed 

Temporary 
Hydrant 
Meters

Work 
Orders 
Issued

Work 
Orders 
Closed

One Call 
Requests

Hydrants 
Hit

July 33 191 103 0 176 165 13 1
August 27 220 99 3 187 184 18 6
September 19 193 106 1 180 175 39 1
October
November
December
January 33 183 64 2 178 172 36 2
February 26 213 52 4 126 122 25 1
March 36 215 30 2 345 167 31 0
April 36 217 76 0 182 174 33 2
May 26 229 53 2 167 165 51 2
June 40 211 74 2 167 162 18 1

Type
Contract 
Number

Job 
Number

Type
Contract 
Number

Job 
Number

Type
Contract 
Number

Job 
Number

Services 715 Hazmat Survey Old Admin Building Belt Collins Hawaii
Services 716 Ronald N.S. Ho & associates
Goods 717 Midpac Auto Center
Goods 718 Allied Machinery Corp.
Goods 719 Allied Machinery Corp.

1. Estimated non-revenue water due to flushing and reported leaks for the month of September is 379,489 gallons

Contractor/Vendor

Contractor

Contractor

Awaiting Board Approval

Processing/Notice to Proceed

Title

Title

Title

Paua Valley Well MCC Replacement
Various Trucks

Emergency Generator
Compact Track Loader

Operations Services Dashboard

Highlights

Operations Contract Dashboard
Open for Bid

Page 234



16.3%
16.2% 15.8%

19.6%
18.4% 17.1%

21.1% 17.8%
19.4% 17.4%

15.1%
13.5%

86.91
$81,306 

72.27
$69,864 69.71

$63,450 

87.83
$82,613 

74.95
$72,457 78.35

$68,414 

87.46
$84,553 86.30

$80,739 

102.95
$99,524 

105.26
$98,475 

83.75
$80,960 

72.98
$70,554 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21

Lo
st

 R
ev

en
u

e

W
at

er
 V

o
lu

m
e 

(1
0

0
0

 g
al

)

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21

Produced 389,892 337,846 315,350 330,207 309,068 312,917 314,312 355,704 401,828 442,170 421,226 409,825

Customer Meter Read 326,223 283,136 265,663 265,514 252,328 259,343 248,100 292,478 323,892 365,056 357,828 354,575

Waterloss 63,669 54,710 49,687 64,693 56,740 53,574 66,212 63,226 77,936 77,114 63,398 55,250

Waterloss $81,306 $69,864 $63,450 $82,613 $72,457 $68,414 $84,553 $80,739 $99,524 $98,475 $80,960 $70,554

Monthly Water Audit
September 2020 - August 2021

Annual
Financial Impact

$952,909

Page 235



4398 Pua Loke Street Līhu'e, HI  96766  Phone:  808-245-5400 Fax:  808-245-5813 Operations Fax:  808-245-5402 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S UPDATE 
       
October 21, 2021 
 

Pursuant to Board Policy No. 3 
CONTRACTS AWARDED/EXTENSION/AMENDMENTS: 
 
1 TENTH AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT NO. 427 JOB NO. 02-14, WP2020 #WK-

08, KĀPAʻA HOMESTEADS 0.5 MG STORAGE TANK AND KĀPAʻA 
HOMESTEADS 325’ TANKS – TWO 0.5 MG TANKS AND CONNECTING 
PIPELINES, WAILUA-KĀPAʻA WATER SYSTEM, KĀPAʻA, KAUAʻI, 
HAWAIʻI WITH BELT COLLINS HAWAII LLC IN THE AMOUNT $44,600.00 

 

FUNDING: 
Funds Available Per Approved Manager’s Report 

No. 21-14 (11/19/20)   $ 45,000.00 
Account No. 30-20-00-605-116     
Account 
Description: 

BAB/Capital 
Projects/Expansion/Design 
(Tenth Amendment     

      
Contract No. 427     
Vendor Belt Collins Hawaii LLC     
 Contract Amount $ 256,700.00   

 First Amendment $ 354,978.00   

 Second Amendment $ 10,000.00   

 Third Amendment $ 19,000.00   

 Fourth Amendment $ 40,450.00   

 Fifth Amendment $ 76,200.00   

 Sixth Amendment $ 2,300.00   

 Seventh Amendment $ 18,100.00   

 Eighth Amendment $ 51,911.26   

 Nineth Amendment $ 160,149.00   

 Total Funds Certified To Date $ 989,788.26   

      

Tenth Amendment (UPDATE):     
Design Changes and Contract Time Extension 
(Reference Manager’s Report No. 21-14) $ 44,600.00   

 Total Amendment $ 44,600.00 $ <44,600.00> 

      

Contract Amount To Date $ 1,034,388.26   

Fund Balance    $ 400.00 

Page 236



MANAGER’S UPDATE 
Re:  Manager’s Update for August 2021 to September 2021 
October 21, 2021 
Page 2 of 6 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
Contract NTP Date:   March 15, 2004  
Original Contract End Date:  March 09, 2005 
First Amendment:  Start: November 07, 2007 End: December 31, 2009 
Second Amendment:  Start: June 05, 2008  End:  
Third Amendment:  Start: November 26, 2008 End:  
Fourth Amendment:  Start: March 24, 2010 End: December 01, 2010 
Fifth Amendment:  Start: March 14, 2011 End: December 13, 2013 
Sixth Amendment:  Start: February 27, 2014 End: June 30, 2014 
Seventh Amendment:  Start: July 01, 2015  End: May 26, 2016 
Eighth Amendment:  Start: October 28, 2016 End: June 30, 2017 
Ninth Amendment:  Start: August 23, 2017 End: Suspended November 26, 2018* 
Tenth Amendment:  End: 60 days from NTP for the Tenth Amendment 
 
*Multiple contract time suspensions have been issued for this project when DOW is reviewing submittals.  
 
The Department of Water (DOW) is proposing to construct two new 0.5 MG concrete storage tanks on 
the same site as the existing Ornellas tank in the Kapa‘a Homesteads located near the intersection of 
Kawaihau Road and Ka‘apuni Road.  This contract is for the project’s design and includes drainage 
improvements for site storm water and potential tank overflow or washout events.  The Department also 
is constructing a separate project, Drill and Test Kapa‘a Well No. 4 at the same site.  
 
Tenth Amendment: 
The construction of the Kapa‘a Homesteads 325’ Tanks and Drill and Test Kapa‘a Well No. 4 projects 
has been delayed because the land owner that initially agreed to accept the drainage from the projects had 
second thoughts about accepting the drainage during construction.  Construction was stopped until the 
landowner and the Board could resolve the drainage.  The Board has agreed to purchase an easement from 
the landowner and the DOW will be responsible for maintaining the drainage facilities on the landowner’s 
property.  Therefore, the Tenth Amendment to the Contract is necessary to make the requested changes to 
the project’s drainage, which include the following: 
 
Package A (Drainage Improvements) will be updated to remove the ditch located at TMK 4-6-11:125 and 
restore Esaki’s property. The drain line on the property will be revised to connect to the existing drainage 
outlet. The consultant will also provide an opinion of probable construction cost and quantities for this 
work. 
 
Package B (Kāpaʻa Homesteads 325’ Two 0.5 MG Tanks) will be updated to provide a detention basin at 
the northeast corner of the Ornellas Tank Site and the Drainage Report will be revised and submitted to 
the Department of Public Works for review and approval. 
 
The services during construction phase of the project are also being modified to include construction 
support for the modified scope of both Package A and Package B. 
 
The Board previously approved $45,000.00 for this contract amendment at the November 19, 2020, Board 
meeting.  Reference Manager’s Report No. 21-14.  (UPDATE: Contract amendment was revised from 
$37, 125 (RTM 01/21/21) to $44,600.) 
 

Page 237



MANAGER’S UPDATE 
Re:  Manager’s Update for August 2021 to September 2021 
October 21, 2021 
Page 3 of 6 

 
 
 

2 CONTACT NO. 717, SOLICITATION GS-2022-01 FURNISH AND DELIVER 
VARIOUS TRUCKS WITH MIDPAC AUTO CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$160,614.00 

 
FUNDING: 
Account No. 10-40-00-605-999     
Acct Description WU/Ops/Capital Outlay-

Expansion/Misc.Capital 
Purchases   $ 102,291.00 

Account No. 10-40-00-604-999     
Acct Description WU/Ops/Capital Outlay-

R&R/Misc. Capital Purchases   $ 65,000.00 
Funds Available Verified by WWC   $ 167,291.00 
      
Contract No. 717     
Vendor Midpac Auto Center     
 Contract Amount $ 160,614.00   

 5% Contingency $ N/A   

 Total Funds Certified $ 160,614.00 $ <160,614.00> 

      

Fund Balance    $ 6,677.00 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Department solicited for vehicles and bids were opened on September 9, 2021, to purchase trucks for 
Operations that will replace aging vehicles.  Vendors had ample time to submit bids.  One responsive offer 
was received for all three trucks, and it was determined that the prices from Midpac Auto Center are fair 
and reasonable. 

 
3 CONTRACT NO. 718, SOLICITATION NO. GS-2022-02 FURNISH AND 

DELIVERY OF ONE (1) 150 kVA TRAILER MOUNTED EMERGENCY 
GENERATOR AWARDED TO ALLIED MACHINERY CORPORATION IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $111,099.43 

 
FUNDING: 
Account No. 10-40-00-604-999     

Acct Description 
WU/Ops/Capital Outlay-
R&R/Misc. Capital Purchases     

Funds Available Verified by WWC   $ 111,099.43 
      
Contract No. 718     
Vendor Allied Machinery Corporation     
 Contract Amount $ 111,099.43   

 5% Contingency $ N/A   

 Total Funds Certified $ 111,099.43 $ <111,099.43> 

Page 238



MANAGER’S UPDATE 
Re:  Manager’s Update for August 2021 to September 2021 
October 21, 2021 
Page 4 of 6 

 
 
 

      

Fund Balance    $ 0.00 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Department has two existing 150 kVA emergency generators manufactured by Onan that is over 28 
years old.  They were acquired from FEMA following Hurricane Iniki in 1992.  These generators have 
slowly degraded over the years, the frame and housing is severely corroding, parts are obsolete and 
extremely difficult to find, and the Department will continue to absorb costs to keep them in operational 
condition.  The Department has already replaced one of the two existing emergency generators.  A 
solicitation was released for the second emergency generator and bids were opened on September 9, 2021. 
Vendors had ample time to submit offers.  Of the three bids received, Allied Machinery Corporation 
submitted the most responsive bid, and the price is fair and reasonable. 
 
4 CONTRACT NO. 719, SOLICITATION NO. GS-2022-03 FOR THE 

FURNISHING AND DELIVERY OF ONE (1) COMPACT TRACK LOADER 
WITH ACCESSORIES AWARDED TO ALLIED MACHINERY 
CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $72,670.13 

 
FUNDING: 
Account No. 10-40-00-604-999     
Acct Description WU/Ops/Capital Outlay-

R&R/Misc. Capital Purchases     
Funds Available Verified by WWC   $ 72,670.13 
      
Contract No. 719     
Vendor Allied Machinery Corporation     
 Contract Amount $ 72,670.13   

 5% Contingency $ N/A   

 Total Funds Certified $ 72,670.13 $ <72,670.13> 

      

Fund Balance    $ 0.00 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Department solicited for bids to replace the existing 2009 Case Skid Steer Loader.  Bids were received 
and opened on September 17, 2021. Vendors were given ample time to submit offers.  Allied Machinery 
Corporation submitted the responsive bid, and the price is fair and reasonable. 
 
WAIVER, RELEASE & INDEMNITY APPLICATIONS: 
None 
 
PERSONNEL MATTERS  
Please reference attachment. 
 
Pursuant to Board Policy No. 24 
CONVEYANCE OF WATER FACILITIES $188,015.00 

Page 239



MANAGER’S UPDATE 
Re:  Manager’s Update for August 2021 to September 2021 
October 21, 2021 
Page 5 of 6 

 
 
 

 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS OF INTEREST: 
1. Correspondence from Michael Serpa, owner/developer Kōloa Village Project, re: FRC Charge 

$138,300 dated July 21, 2021       
 
BACKGROUND: 
Mr. Serpa sent a letter, dated July 21, 2021, to the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua’i requesting 
a facilities reserve charge (FRC) fee waiver in the amount of $138,300. The correspondence was 
presented to the Board at the August 26, 2021, meeting. The Board turned the matter over to staff for 
action. Staff researched the facts surrounding the FRC for Kōloa Village.  The Manager and Chief 
Engineer determined it was appropriate to waive the requirement of the FRC rules and regulations.  The 
Board may overturn the Manager’s decision.     
 
The Manager is authorized to grant a waiver if three criteria can be met. 
 
1. Strict application of the rule would cause an absurd, unfair, or unreasonably harsh result; and 
 
On September 24, 2020, he received a certificate of completion (COC) for the project. On December 15, 
2020, he requested that commercial building space be converted to residential housing with five or more 
units. Per the rules, this is considered a new use because the COC had been issued. However, strict 
application of the rule in this situation would be unfair. I had staff recalculate the FRC for a mixed use 
(commercial and residential) to see of the FRC was adequately covered by the original fee. The FRC fee 
he paid for the 3-inch meter was sufficient for the new mixed use based upon those calculations. 
 
2. The applicant's circumstance or condition is unique or exceptional, and the Manager would grant 
the same request if made by every similarly situated applicant; and 
 
This situation is unique in that the impact requiring a 3-inch meter was adequate based upon the 
recalculation. If something similar happened in the future I would have staff recalculate the FRC as if 
the COC had not been issued. However, the recalculation could result in a higher FRC fee. It did not in 
this case. 
 
3. Such modification thereof as is reasonably necessary or expedient, and not contrary to law or the 
intent and purposes of these rules and regulations 
 
The intent of the FRC is to require that new or expanded development to contribute its proportionate 
share of the cost of the impact to the existing sources, storage and transmission mains. Given the 
project's approved use, the FRC levied, and the subsequent expanded use, the impact fee Mr. Serpa 
originally paid was adequate. No additional FRC payment was merited in this circumstance in 
accordance with the intent and purpose of the FRC Rule. 
 
In summary, Mr. Serpa’s request for waiver and return of FRC fee credit has been granted in the amount 
of $138,320.00. In my review of the facts concerning his request, I determined that DOW staff applied 
Part 5 in a correct manner. However, in this case, a waiver of the rules should be granted because it 

Clarence J. Domdoma Revocable Living Trust 4-4-03:083 Kapa‘a 
Kukuiula Development Company (Hawaii), LLC [S-2019-
19, Parcel G] 2-6-22:070

Poipu

Kainani Villas, LLC 
Kukuiula Residential Development, LLC
[S-2019-13, Kainani Phase 2]

2-6-21:005;
2-6-21:016;
2-6-21:017

Poipu

Page 240



MANAGER’S UPDATE 
Re:  Manager’s Update for August 2021 to September 2021 
October 21, 2021 
Page 6 of 6 

 
 
 

meets the three waiver requirements—fairness, uniqueness, and intent. Mr. Serpa’s waived FRC fee will 
be returned if the Board does not take action pursuant to Rules Part 3, sec. XII: 
 
Any waiver or modification made by the Manager and Chief Engineer will not be considered to have 
final approval until the Board is notified of the action through the Manager and Chief Engineer’s 
monthly report. The Board may overturn or nullify the Manager’s waiver or modification by a majority 
vote.  
 
Board Requirements: Should the applicant request Board action after the Manager and Chief Engineer 
declined to waive or modify the requirements or should the applicant’s request involve the exemption 
from or reduction of the FRC fee or should the Board decide to take action contrary to the Manager and 
Chief Engineer’s action, the Board may, by a super majority vote, waive or modify requirements of 
these rules when not contrary to the purpose of the rules or the public interest. The Board, by a super 
majority vote, must find that:  
 
1. Strict application of the rule would cause an absurd, unfair, or unreasonably harsh result; and  
2. The applicant's circumstance or condition is unique or exceptional, and the Board would grant the 
same request if made by every similarly situated applicant; and  
3. Such modification thereof as is reasonably necessary or expedient, and not contrary to law or the 
intent and purposes of these rules and regulations; and  
4. In cases of exemption from or reduction of the FRC fee, the resulting financial impact upon the 
Department and future consumers is acceptable to the Board. 
   

Attachments: Correspondence to Michael Serpa regarding Kōloa Village Project, re: FRC Charge 
$138,300  

 
Mgrrp/Manager’s Update (October 21, 2021):mja 

Page 241



a

OFFICE OF THE MANAGERANDCHIEF ENGINEER
DEPARTMENTOF WATER, COUNTY OF KAUA’I

MARKR. KNOFF,P.E., PhD. MANAGER AND CHIEF ENGINEER

 

September29, 2021
County of Kaua‘

Mr. Michael Serpa

Koloa Village

Post Office Box 12

Koloa, HI 96756

Dear Mr. Serpa:

Re: Request for Refund

No Water Meters — FRC Charge $138,300 K6loa Village 12 Live/Work Apartments

lam in receipt of your letter dated July 21, 2021, to the Board of Water Supply (BWS), County of

Kaua’i requesting a facilities reserve charge (FRC) refund of $138,300. Your correspondence was

presented to the Board at the August 26, 2021, meeting. The Board forwarded yourletter to the

staff for action according to the Board rules. After researching the facts surrounding the FRC for

Koloa Village | am approving your request for a refund. | will need to inform the Board of my

actions at the October 21, 2021, monthly meeting. The decisionis not final until after the Board

reviews my decision. They can either uphold or overturn my decision.

The evaluation is based upon point two of your letter. The other points you raise do not merit a

waiver evaluation. First, the Department of Water (DOW)staff correctly applied Part 5, Facilities

Reserve Chargeof the rules and regulations. Part 3, Section XII - Modification of Requirements,

provides for a waiver or modification, including a reduction to the applied FRC. Your request for

waiver wasevaluated using the three criteria outlined in Part 3. All three requirements must be

met to grant a waiver.

1. Strict application of the rule would cause an absurd, unfair, or unreasonably harsh result.

On September 24, 2020, you received a certificate of completion (COC) for the project. On

December 15, 2020, you requested that commercial building space be converted to residential

housing with five or more units. Per the rules, this is considered a new use because the COC

had been issued. However, strict application of the rule in this situation would be unfair. | had

staff recalculate the FRC for a mixed use (commercial and residential) to see of the FRC was

adequately covered by that fee. The FRC fee you paid for the 3-inch meter wassufficient for the

new mixed use based uponthosecalculations.

www.kauaiwater.org
4398 Pua Loke Street « Lihu’e, Hawai'i 96766 + (808) 245-5408(b) + (808) 245-5813 (f)

An Equal Opportunity Employer

Page 242



Mr. Michael Serpa

Subject: Request for Refund

No Water Meters — FRC Charge $138,300 KGloa Village 12 Live/Work Apartments

September 29, 2021

Page 2 of 2

2. The applicant's circumstance or condition is unique or exceptional, and the Manager would

grant the same requestif made by every similarly situated applicant.

This situation is uniquein that the impact requiring a 3-inch meter was adequate based upon

the recalculation. If something similar happened in the future | would have staff recalculate the

FRC as if the COC had not been issued. However, the recalculation could result in a higher FRC

fee. It did not in your case.

Such modification thereof as is reasonably necessary or expedient, and not contrary to law or

the intent and purposes of these rules and regulations.

Becausetheintent of the FRCis to require a project contribute its proportionate share of the cost of the

impact to existing facilities. Given the project’s approved use and new use hadno additional or new

impact to the existing facilities, no payment of FRC in this circumstanceis in accordance with the intent

and purposeof the FRC Rule.

In summary, | am granting your request for waiver and refund. The amountto be refunded based

upon yourreceipt is $138,320.00. In my review of the facts concerning your request, | determined

that DOW staff applied Part 5, in a correct manner. However, your circumstances metall three

waiver requirements as outlined in Part 3, Section XIl of the rules and regulations. My actionswill

be reported to the Board at the monthly meeting. You will receive the refund shortly thereafterif

the Board agrees with my decision.

Respectfully,

A)R. 4AFeat
Managerand Chief Engineer

Attachment:

1. Letter from Michael Serpa dated July 21, 2021

MRK/mija

Page 243



 

4398 Pua LokeStreet
Lihue, Kauai, Hawaii 96766

 

Michael Serpa

KoloaVillage

Post Office Box 12

Koloa, HI 96756

  

 

   

quadient

c FIRST-CLASS MAIL

a
i fire

$000.53 °
10/08/2021 ZIP 96766
043M31219192

3
D
V
L
S
O
d

Sf)

Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



(8) - Engineering 44.4%

(7) - Operations 12.3%

(3) - Fiscal 13.0%(3) - Administration 30.0%

(0) - Water Quality
0.0%

(2) - Info Tech 50.0%

Personnel Dashboard

Summary
Total Authorized = 117
Total Vacant = 23
Actively Recruiting = 7

Highlights

1.  Civil Engineer VI #2430 retired
9/30/2021. 

2.   Civil Engineer III #2351 
classification review completed. 

3 .  Manager & Chief Engineer
starts 10/01/2021.

Vacancies by Division
(# Vacancies), Division, Percent Vacant

Page 250



 

Quarterly 

Reports 

Page 251



BUILD AMERICA BOND FUND DEPARTMENT OF WATER
County of Kauai FY 2010 - 2012

TOTAL 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

60,000,000.00$     -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         60,000,000.00$     

 $       2,160,562.81  $               1,406.49  $          318,033.00  $          239,725.76  $          136,213.08  $             43,433.92  $             62,650.14  $          246,093.42  $       1,113,007.00 

 $     62,160,562.81  $               1,406.49  $          318,033.00  $          239,725.76  $          136,213.08  $             43,433.92  $             62,650.14  $          246,093.42  $       1,113,007.00  $                           -    $                           -    $                           -    $     60,000,000.00 

201-
01

 $                           -   

 $          535,838.66  $          535,838.66 

217  $          741,141.50  $          741,141.50 

218 Pipeline replacement, Kapaa Homesteads  $       2,941,979.00  $          966,229.51  $       1,975,749.49 

219
Main replacement, Vivian Heights and Apopo 
Road and Kanahele Road

 $       2,651,730.99  $          105,007.40  $          476,365.60  $       2,070,357.99 

220 Anahola 0.15 MG Tank Renovation  $       1,571,169.09  $          417,459.47  $          738,342.29  $          348,437.12  $             66,930.21 

684 Waimea Main Replacement  $       3,272,975.12  $          112,524.38  $       3,160,450.74 

687
Kekaha 12" Main Replacement and Waimea 
Canyon Drive 12" Main Replacement

 $          677,234.29  $               8,796.00  $          668,438.29 

221 Pipeline replacement, Anini Road  $          724,652.00  $                  320.25  $             40,444.75  $             99,727.00  $             75,360.00  $             91,600.00  $          331,800.00  $             85,400.00 

222
Kaumualii Hwy widening, Anonoui St to Lihue 
Mill Bridge

 $       5,208,503.03  $          603,320.00  $       4,368,972.73  $          236,210.30 

223
PLH-25, 8" Main Replacement, Eiwa, Umi, 
Akahi, Elua &  Hardy/Alohi Streets

 $       2,710,970.00  $          207,527.45  $       1,837,108.24  $          666,334.31 

224
Rehabilitation of Maka Ridge Deepwell Tank, 
Pipeline and Rdway, Ohana, Anolani & 
Kuamoo Roads

 $       1,381,988.40  $             70,243.40  $          816,129.43  $          495,615.57 

227  $          639,282.53  $          299,937.43  $          308,235.45  $             31,109.65 

326 Omao 0.5 MG Tank and connecting Pipeline  $       2,519,540.05  $       1,105,978.21  $       1,413,561.84 

228  $          500,991.73  $          500,991.73 

230
Rehabilitation of Eleele Twin 0.4 MG Steel 
Tanks

 $       2,018,853.05  $          419,657.59  $          820,325.86  $          654,054.56  $          124,815.04 

231 Waipouli Main Replacement to Akulikuli  $       2,229,690.39  $          140,809.76  $          460,829.74  $       1,628,050.89 

232
Kapaa Homesteads 0.5 MG Tank #2 and 
Kapahi 1.0 MG Tank

 $          293,603.56  $             28,276.20  $          181,031.23  $             33,913.47  $               4,820.46  $             44,327.74  $               1,234.46 

233
Kalaheo 1111' & 1222' Water System 
Improvement

 $       1,062,603.99  $               5,326.25  $             30,660.00  $             67,910.95  $             40,510.00  $          252,930.74  $               4,084.44  $             41,155.98  $             29,424.45  $             54,561.67  $          505,005.23  $             31,034.28 

CASH RECEIPTS

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE

Bond Proceeds

Interest Income

Job 02-16

TOTAL RESOURCES

BAB - CIP

EA-194 Hanalei River & 
Moelepe Stream Pipeline

Job 02-18

Job 04-02

Job 03-02

Job 05-01

Job 02-03

Job 10-01

Job 10-02 & 13-03

Job 05-06

Waimea Well A Renovation

Job 02-02

Koloa Tank Site Acquisition

Job 02-08

Job 02-19

Job 02-14

Job 09-01 K-01, K-12

Cost of Issurance

Page 252



BUILD AMERICA BOND FUND DEPARTMENT OF WATER
County of Kauai FY 2010 - 2012

TOTAL 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010CASH RECEIPTS

  
683 Kekaha Well B Renovation  $          627,165.43  $             42,828.60  $          265,223.57  $          319,113.26 

234  $          302,396.47  $          302,396.47 

235
Nawiliwili, Niumalu and Kupolo 6", 8" and 12" 
Main replacement

 $       3,150,226.75  $          689,732.75  $       2,460,494.00  $                           -   

237 Replacement Grove Farm Tanks #1 & #2  $          201,658.00  $             24,767.90  $             33,185.10  $                           -    $             67,905.00  $             44,165.00  $                           -    $             31,635.00  $                           -   

692  $       7,755,133.98  $             15,035.86  $          544,777.77  $          575,693.09  $       5,951,097.31  $               1,510.40  $               1,466.25  $          382,445.74  $          283,107.56  $                           -   

621 Kilauea 1.0 MG Tank  $          250,973.16  $             17,438.16  $             13,380.00  $             73,995.00  $             93,310.00  $             52,850.00 

238
Lawai-Omao Water Main Replacement & 
Service Improvements

 $             71,737.50  $               5,967.45  $             30,745.05  $             35,025.00 

239
Maka Ridge Facilities Rehabilitation and 
Princeville Interconnection Plan

 $       2,333,850.55  $          244,226.89  $          276,328.78  $       1,813,294.88 

240
Land and Well Acquisition, Moloaa and 
Waimea, Kauai

 $          159,938.00  $               3,678.00  $             25,300.00  $             14,160.00  $             23,290.00  $             71,730.00  $             21,780.00 

242 Moloaa Land Acquisition  $                           -   

243
Rehabilitate Moelelpe Tunnel and improve 
access road

 $             19,200.00  $             19,200.00 

244  $          193,578.95  $             67,715.05  $             61,552.30  $             64,311.60 

610 Moloaa Land Acquisition  $                           -   

8" WL Halewili Kaumualii to Hale  $          694,331.55  $          282,186.78  $          412,144.77 

MCC Chlor KoloaWell16-A,B,E  $       3,667,032.67  $             44,513.76  $       1,623,383.03  $       1,999,135.88 

Kapaa Homesteads Well #4  $       1,308,153.06  $             43,250.00  $          588,360.39  $          676,542.67 

 $     52,418,123.45  $               5,326.25  $             73,910.00  $          700,785.10  $       2,401,506.17  $       3,087,416.57  $       1,056,359.93  $       6,518,285.06  $          349,034.19  $       2,210,406.85  $       6,723,168.75  $     16,360,816.36  $     11,654,128.06  $       1,276,980.16 

Cash Balance  $       9,742,439.36  $             (5,326.25)  $           (72,503.51)  $        (382,752.10)  $     (2,161,780.41)  $     (2,951,203.49)  $     (1,012,926.01)  $     (6,455,634.92)  $        (102,940.77)

Job 02-11

Job 11-06

Job 11-02

PLH-39 Lihue Baseyd

Job 02-06

Job 11-04

Job 02-17

Job 04-06

Kukuiolono Water Tank Site 
Acquisition

Job 05-05

TOTAL

Job 11-03

K-05A Kukuiolono 0.5 MG 
886' Tank

Job 02-11

Job 11-10

Job 11-07

Job 04-08

Page 253



COUNTY ATTORNEY QUARTERLY REPORT 
 
This report is submitted pursuant to Board Policy No. 25. 
 
CLAIMS SETTLED: None; three pending. 
 

Claimant(s) - 
Attorney Date of Loss Filed with Office Date Closed Basis of Claim Claim Amount Settled Amount Corrective Action 

Recommendation 

Vandervoet, 
David 6/30/2021 7/23/2021 

 OPEN; 
pending 
decision 

Property Damage: Claimant’s neighbor told him that Kauai Water 
Dept was digging by the telephone pole at the entrance to his 
driveway on June 30, 2021, attempting to find a water shut-off valve 
for the service at the property across the street on Weke Road.  On 
July 1, 2021, he found that he had no cable signal to his house.   
Spectrum Cable and Kauai Vacation Rentals visited the house on July 
3, 2021 and reported that the conduit that carries the coaxial cable 
from the service pole to his house had been broken by a digging effort 
at the base of the telephone pole and that his coaxial cable and phone 
line to the house were both severed. 

$1,830.00  

  

Page 254



Allen, McKenna 6/23/2021 8/5/2021 
 OPEN; 
pending 
decision 

Towing Fee: Claimant is employed by the State DLNR Division of 
Aquatic Resources.  Claimant parked in the lot fronting the old water 
building on 6/23/21 at 6:00 and returned from field work at 15:45 to 
find that Claimant’s vehicle had been towed.   

$125.00  

  

Melamed, Mia 6/23/2021 8/6/2021 
 OPEN; 
pending 
decision 

Towing Fee: Claimant is employed by the State DLNR Division of 
Aquatic Resources.  Claimant parked in the lot fronting the old water 
building on 6/23/21 at 6:00 and returned from field work at 15:45 to 
find that Claimant’s vehicle had been towed. 

$130.24  

  

Page 255



QUARTERLY 
UPDATE

Period of July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021 

ENGINEERING DIVISION
Submitted by:  Michael K. Hinazumi, P.E.

DEPARTMENT OF WATER
October 21, 2021

Page 256



Executive Summary
Significant updates for this quarter include:

• Water Resources and Planning Section
• Subdivision-Land Use applications completed => 48 (increase of 26%)
• Water Service Requests => 39 (increase of 15%) 
• Building Permit applications => 477 (increase of 10%)
• Backflow Devices Inspected and Tested => 1971 (increase of 2%)
• Lead and Copper Rule water system sampling conducted

• Engineering Services Section
• Overseeing 20 ongoing DOW Design project, including several multi-phased projects
• Private Project Reviews => 45 (increase of 5%)
• Kapaia Cane Haul Road 18-Inch Waterline (Job No. 16-02) => Pending SHPD approval
• Rehabilitate Paua Valley Tank No. 1 (Job No. 17-10) => Under project re-evaluation

• Construction Management Section
• Overseeing four (4) DOW projects in various phases of construction
• Completed and closed fifteen (15) private projects

Page 257



Water Restriction Areas

Water System/Sub-System
Restrictions            

(5/8-inch water meter or 
number units per lot)

Inadequate Facilities Comments

Upper Lawai 2 Storage Administration Approved

Poipu 300 Storage

Board Approved (50% of 
new tank allowed for 
new development; 50% 
to make up storage 
deficit

Wailua Homesteads 5 Storage Administration Approved

Upper Wailua Homesteads 2 Storage Administration Approved

Kapaa Homesteads 5 Source Board Approved

Moloa’a 0 Source and Storage Water Purchase 
Agreement

Kilauea-Kalihiwai 5 Source and Storage Administration Approved

Aliomanu – Kukuna Road 0 Transmission Administration Approved

Anini 1 Source and Storage Water Purchase
Agreement

Upper Wainiha Valley 1 Storage Administration Approved

Wainiha – Haena 3 Storage Administration Approved
Page 258



Accomplishments
July – September 2021

Subdivision Applications; Zoning / Land Use / Variance 
Permits; Zoning Amendments; ADU/ARU Clearance 

Applications
48

Water Service Requests 39

Building Permit Applications 477

Backflow Inspection Program – No. of Tested Devices 1971

Private Projects July – September 2021

Design Approved 25

In Design Review 40

Preparing to enter Construction 20

In Construction 17

Closing 28

Completed 15
Page 259



Water Plan 2020 Construction Project Status

WP 2020 
NUMBER JOB NO PROJECT TITLE % COMPLETE 

MAR 2020
% COMPLETE 
JUNE 2021

ORIGINAL 
ESTIMATE TO 
COMPLETE

CURRENT 
ESTIMATE TO 
COMPLETE

CURRENT 
CONTRACT 
AMOUNT

HE-01 15-07 Kaumuali'i Highway 16” Main and Emergency 
Booster Pump Connection 87 90 Q3 2019 Q4 2021 (9 & 

11) $10,998,182.59

HE-10 15-07 Hanapepe Road 6” Main Replacement Combined with 
HE-01

WK-39& 
WK-08 02-14 Kapaa Well 4 Drainage line & Kapaa Well 4 Drill 

& Test 86 87 Q3 2019 Q1 2022 (9 & 
11) $2,382,043.35

KW-07 17-10 Paua Valley Tank Repairs 4 4 Q2 2021 Q3 2022 (12) $2,264,750.00

PLH-35B 16-02 Kapaia Haul Cane Road 18” Transmission Line 7 7 Q3 2019 Q4 2022 (8) $4,127,545

TOTAL = $19,772,520.94
(1) Change order issued which extended project schedule.
(2) Awaiting close out documents
(3) Awaiting contract dispute resolution
(4) Awaiting DPW road permit signoff
(5) Contract closed out
(6) Liquidated Damages being enforced
(7) Awaiting Building Permit signoff
(8) Project issued stop work order and is on hold due to SHPD issues.
(9) Redesign required additional time
(10) Progress made but new change order amounts were substantial and reduced work completed to contract amount ratio.
(11) Project issued stop work order due to COVID-19 but has since resumed.
(12) Project issued stop work order due to redesign and re-evaluation.

Page 260



IDIQ Services

Contract Number Company Contract Amount Number of Projects 
Assignments

637 RM Towill Inc. $1,467,392 1

690 Bowers & Kubota $700,000 2

700 Brown & Caldwell $150,000 1

Page 261



Jas Banwait                                                                                     October 2021

Information Technology Quarterly Update
July 2021 – September 2021

Page 262



Technology
►Upgrade SCADA Network 

►Expected completion December 2021

►Upgrade Financial Accounting System
►RFP – In Progress

►Upgrade Customer Billing System
►RFP – In Progress 

►Core IT Infrastructure Upgrades
►Server/Network upgrade – In Progress
►Estimated March 2022 completion

►Board of Water, 2022 Sunshine Requirements
►Live Stream via Granicus
►Board Meeting via Zoom Webinars
►Implementation December 2021

Page 263


	COVID-19 BOARD COVER SHEET
	RBM Agenda 10-21-21 DRAFT
	Draft Minutes
	09-23-21 RBM Minutes (Open Session) DRAFT
	Consent Calendar
	MR 22-27 Attachment Board Policy 8
	MR 22-28 - Board Policy 12, Retention Periods and Destruction of Records (09-24-21)
	MR 22-28 Attachment Board Policy 12
	MR 22-29 - Board Policy 15, Payment of Claims and Disbursement of Funds (09-24-21)
	MR 22-29 Attachment Board Policy 15
	MR 22-30 - Board Policy 19, Travel Allowance Excess Expenditures (09-24-21)
	MR 22-30 Attachment Board Policy 19
	MR 22-31 - Kulana Onsite Phase 2 - COWF
	MR 22-31 Attachment Kulana_Onsite_Ph2_COWF
	MR 22-32 - Kulana Onsite Phase 2 - GOE
	MR 22-32 Attachment Kulana_Onsite_Ph2_GOE
	MR 22-33 - Kulana Offsite - COWF
	MR 22-33 Attachment Kulana_Offsite_COWF
	MR 22-34 - Kulana Offsite - ROE
	MR 22-34 Attachment Kulana_Offsite_ROE_4-3-11-001
	MR 22-35 - Kulana Tank - ROE
	MR 22-35 Kulana_Tank_ROE_4-4-03-089
	MR22-2~2
	20211010_Mgr's Report No 22-36 - Kukuiula Parcel E - COWF
	Board Report Placeholder TEMPLATE
	20211010_Mgr's Report No 22-37 - Kukuiula Parcel E - GOE
	Board Report Placeholder TEMPLATE
	20211010_Mgr's Report No 22-38 - Kukuiula Parcel G - GOE
	Board Report Placeholder TEMPLATE
	20211010_Mgr's Report No 22-39 - Kukuiula Parcel Kainani Villas - GOE
	Board Report Placeholder TEMPLATE
	New Business
	MR 22-40 - Resolution No. 22-05 Honoring Imagine a Day Without Water
	MR 22-40 Attachment Resolution 22-05 Honoring Imagine a Day Without Water - DRAFT
	MR 22-41 Indemnification for Zoom
	MR 22-42 Indemnification for Granicus
	Board Meeting Dates CY 2022 DRAFT
	BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY, COUNTY OF KAUA'I

	Staff Reports
	Fiscal Binder_September_21
	1 Ongoing Activities -2021_9.pdf
	Fiscal Report:  Monthly Summary Highlights – september, 2021
	I. Budget summary vs. Actual (see attached report for details)
	year to date (YTD) budget & actual expenses SUMMARY – as of september, 2021
	Revenues: variance = “actual” less “budget”; positive indicates HIGHER performance than expected.
	Revenues: variance = “actual” less “budget”; positive indicates HIGHER performance than expected.
	Operating Expenses:  variance = budget less actual
	expenSES; positive VARIANCE indicates LESS ACTUAL EXPENSES VS. BUDGET.  revised ytd budget columns include PO rollover from fy endiNg 2021.
	Net Operating Income:
	Non-Operating proceeds & Disbursements
	Capital projects budget: YTD disbursements = $78,495.44

	II. COMPARATIVE CHARTS:
	METERED CONSUMPTION:

	Iii. comparative balance sheet: see attached.
	iV. Other Fiscal Ongoing Activities/Initiatives:


	2_Monthly Budget vs Actual - KDOW (9)
	SUMMARY-F (2)

	3_Statements of Net Position-Revised_2021_9
	Statements of Net Position-Re-F

	5_Modified_charts - 2021_9
	Mo Concumption CHT
	YTD Consumption CHT
	RC Summary CHT
	Receipts CHT

	6_Modified_AR Aging Summary 2021_9
	AR Aging CHT


	PR -Board Report 10-21-2021
	01_GardenIsland (Water shutdown impacts Haua'ala Road today)
	Dashboard September 2021
	MRK-Produced Metered as of August 2021
	Manager's Update (10-21-21)
	Bi-Weekly Report HR (10-01-21) Personnel Summary 
	Vacancy CHT

	B22-01 Michael Serpa re FRC Charge Refund (09-29-21) Mailed
	Quarterly Reports
	Board Report Placeholder TEMPLATE
	OCA Quarterly Claims Report - 3rd Qtr. 2021
	20211011 - Engineering Division Quarterly Update July-September 2021
	QUARTERLY UPDATE��Period of July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021 ��ENGINEERING DIVISION�Submitted by:  Michael K. Hinazumi, P.E.
	Executive Summary
	Water Restriction Areas
	Accomplishments
	Water Plan 2020 Construction Project Status
	IDIQ Services

	Board Report Placeholder TEMPLATE
	MR 22-37 Attachment Kukuiula Parcel E - GOE.pdf
	GOE_Parcel_E_AU-1_2-6-22-083_FINAL
	GOE_Parcel_E_W-1_2-6-22-020_por_FINAL

	MR 22-39 Attachment Kukuiula Parcel Kainani Villas - GOE.pdf
	GOE_Kainani_Villas_AU-1_2-6-21-017_FINAL
	GOE_Kainani_Villas_W-1_2-6-21-005_FINAL
	GOE_Kainani_Villas_W-2_2-6-21-016_FINAL
	GOE_Kainani_Villas_W-3_2-6-21-016_FINAL
	GOE_Kainani_Villas_W-4_2-6-21-016_FINAL

	Copy of Bond expenditures as of 9-30-21.pdf
	BAB

	2021-10-13 - Quarterly Report - IT Strategic Plan Update - July - Sept 2021.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 6




